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Hearing on Motions Filed by Billy Kidwell

Hearing on Fee Applications

Application of Mark Buttita Pursuant to 11 U.S.C. Section
503 (b) for Allowance of Administrative Expenses Incurred in
Making a Substantial Contribution in this Chapter 11 case from

June 4, 2009 through July 15, 2009

234th Omnibus Objection to Claims (Pension Benefits Claims of

Former Salaried and Hourly Employees)

235th Omnibus Objection to Claims (Pension Claims and Welfare
Benefits Claims of Former Salaried Executive, or Hourly

Employees)

236th Omnibus Objection to Claims (Splinter Union Employee

Claims)

237th Omnibus Objection to Claims (Claims Relating to Former

Employees Represented by United Auto Workers)

238th Omnibus Objection to Claims (Welfare Benefits Claims of

Retired and Former Salaried and Executive Employees)
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to claims (Supplemental Executive
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PROCEEDTINGS

THE COURT: Good morning again. Have seats, please.
Have seats, everybody.

Once more, I apologize to you all.

All right, we'll deal with the GM matters in their
original order. 1In my courtroom, I see Mr. Steinberg. You're
here on Kidwell?

MR. STEINBERG: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Kidwell, are you on the
phone?

CourtCall, do we have other folks --

COURTCALL OPERATOR: Yes, he is.

THE COURT: I beg your pardon-?

COURTCALL OPERATOR: Yes, he is on the line.

THE COURT: Okay, Mr. Kidwell, are you with us?

MR. KIDWELL: Hello?

THE COURT: Okay, good morning, Mr. Kidwell.

MR. KIDWELL: Good morning.

THE COURT: Now, I understand that you don't have a
lawyer, and I'm going to cut you some slack there, but while I
have to tell you that while I honor your service, I have a fair
number of concerns about your legal entitlement to what you are
asking for. Please focus in your argument, and I understand
your frustration with your car, but I think it's a 2003, and

both its express warranties and your lemon law rights expired a
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long time ago, in fact, before the General Motors case was
filed two years ago. Don't talk so much about the car getting
you mad because I understand that. If I had a car like that,
it would get me mad, too. But talk about your legal
entitlement, please, and start with why you think I'm not fair
and I need to recuse myself.

COURTCALL OPERATOR: Mr. Kidwell has disconnected.

THE COURT: He's disconnected?

COURTCALL OPERATOR: His line has stopped
(indiscernible) .

THE COURT: Okay.

Mr. Steinberg, I'm going to need to impose on you.
There are so many other people in the courtroom, and with it
now being 10:30, I'm going to take the 10:30 calendar and ask
you to sit by in case he gets back on the line. And if he
does, I'll hear argument. And I'm also in a position where if
I need to, I can rule on the briefs. Thank you.

Is there any reason why we can't start with the 10:30
calendar now? It's one minute to 10:30.

Is Mr. -- yeah, Mr. Williamson is there and is out in
right field. And Mr. Karotkin's at third base. As far as you
know, gentlemen, are we in a position where we can proceed?

MR. WILLIAMSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay, and who's going to take the lead-?

Mr. Williamson, good morning.
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MR. WILLIAMSON: Good morning, Your Honor. Brady
Williamson, the fee examiner, with counsel, Katherine Stadler.
Your Honor, we're here on the final fee applications on Motors
Liquidation. We've filed a final report. We have filed
twenty-five individual reports covering the period from October
1st, 2010 through the confirmation date.

We recommend that the Court give its approval to the
interim and final fees under Section 330 as they were submitted
and adjusted by stipulation, and we recommend that the Court
enter an order authorizing payment. The fees are reasonable,
they meet the requirements of the Code and the related
authority, and the professionals in this case have provided
real value to the estates.

THE COURT: Okay.

Mr. Masumoto or Ms. Davis, do you wish to be heard?

MR. MASUMOTO: Good morning, Your Honor. Brian
Masumoto for the Office of the United States Trustee. As
indicated by the fee examiner, our office did file a response
and did agree with the recommendations of the fee examiner. We
have, at this point, nothing further and no further objections
to raise.

THE COURT: Okay. Do any of the applicants
representing the estate fiduciaries wish to be heard in any
way?

Mr. Smolinsky, are you coming up?

VERITEXT REPORTING COMPANY
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1 MR. SMOLINSKY: Yes, Your Honor.

2 Good morning, Your Honor. Joseph Smolinsky of Weil,

3 Gotshal & Manges for the debtors. I think Mr. Brady (sic) laid
4 it out well. I just want to indicate --

5 THE COURT: Mr. Williamson, I assume.

6 MR. SMOLINSKY: Mr. Williamson. I'm sorry. I just

7 want to lay out for Your Honor a change from what we had

8 discussed previously on the rate increase issue. The parties

9 have gotten together and have decided that the amounts at issue
10 can be paid out subject to the parties' obligations to disgorge
11 to the extent that there are amounts that are still at issue at
12 the end of the day, and we will speak with Mr. Williamson and
13 his colleagues further on those issues and attempt to resolve
14 them.

15 THE COURT: So I decide the legal issue, but it's not
16 a matter for today?

17 MR. SMOLINSKY: That's correct, Your Honor.

18 THE COURT: Very well.

19 Anybody else wish to be heard?
20 MR. WEISS: Your Honor, this is Robert Weiss on behalf
21 of Honigman Miller Schwartz and Cohn.
22 THE COURT: Yes, Mr. Weiss, good morning.
23 MR. WEISS: Good morning, sir. I just wanted to point
24 out that the schedule that's been attached to the examiner's
25 final report, we're listed under the schedule that says

VERITEXT REPORTING COMPANY
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1 "amounts already paid to the professionals, eighty percent of
2 fees and a hundred percent of expenses". With regard to the
3 final fee application, we have not received any payment at all.
4 I believe the examiner agrees with that, but I just wanted to
5 make that correction.
6 THE COURT: Okay.
7 Anybody else? Mr. Williamson, come on up, please.
8 MR. WILLIAMSON: Just one logistical note, Your Honor.
9 Later today or tomorrow, with the cooperation of the debtors'
10 counsel, we'll be circulating a draft order and slightly
11 modified schedules that I think accommodate everyone's
12 concerns.
13 THE COURT: Okay.
14 Anything else?
15 All right, well, given the consensual resolution, I'm
16 not going to speak at length. This, at the risk of stating the
17 obvious, has been an enormous case placing tremendous
18 challenges on many people, most significantly the retained
19 fiduciaries in the estate and the professionals for them.
20 Any time you have a case this big, and this case was
21 huge in terms of both assets and debt, a lot of work has to be
22 done. A lot of lawyering, a lot of financial advisory
23 services, a lot of accounting services. Across the board, I
24 was very pleased with the quality of the services here, and I
25 thought the estate got excellent bang for the buck.
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Legal fees result from an amalgam of factors. They
run -- they're kind of like taxis. There's how much the meter
flips each time and it's also how far you travel. And each of
those contributes to the overall size of the fee, and perhaps
you could even take the metaphor to a further extent, as well.
Although there were times when I would have preferred that
there be less litigiousness amongst competing creditor
constituencies, a view that I made known at the time, I think
people got the message, and I thought they did a very good job
in keeping the fees reasonable for the needs that had to be
accomplished.

At the same time, I'm very grateful to Mr. Williamson
and his colleagues for their services. Inevitably, when you
have so many fee requests and so many timekeepers keeping
record of their fees, especially those who have less experience
with the requirements of the bankruptcy system, people stray
from what we expect. And I think Mr. Williamson for helping
keep people get back on track.

By that, I don't mean to understate the contributions
of the U.S. Trustee's office which I will note was on the job
in this but which, to their credit, avoided duplication of
effort, and for that, too, I am grateful.

So the fees in the amounts that have been adjusted to
consensually resolve these issues are approved. The remaining

matters, as Mr. Smolinsky referred to in his remarks, are
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continued. And I will enter one or more interim orders
consistent with my ruling today.

Mr. Williamson, as a mechanical matter, are you going
to take the lead on the order or are debtors' counsel or some
other party?

MR. WILLIAMSON: It will be collegial. I think we'll
be convening with the debtors' counsel this afternoon, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. What I would like is from whomever
presents the order or orders to give me either a letter of
transmittal or an e-mail transmittal that confirms that the
order has been run by everybody and that it is consistent with
what everybody thought it would say.

And with that, I think we're adjourned on that.

Anybody who's here solely on those few requests -- now we're
talking about estate fiduciaries -- you may have a hybrid
capacity, Mr. Williamson -- is free to go, if he or she wishes
to.

MR. WILLIAMSON: Your Honor, simply let me note for
the record that the representatives of those seeking fees for
ARPC and for Mr. Buttita have issues that they may want to
present to the Court. But we've outlined our position in our
report.

THE COURT: Okay. So you can either stay on that or

leave, as you see fit. When I was talking about estate
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1 fiduciaries, I was intending to be very precise and not to deal
2 with their issues.

3 Mr. Masumoto, are you rising for anything other than

4 to get out of here?

5 MR. MASUMOTO: No, Your Honor, although I may monitor

6 some of these subsequent matters.

7 THE COURT: Okay.

8 MR. MASUMOTO: Thank you.

9 THE COURT: Okay. Very well. All right.

10 COURTCALL OPERATOR: Your Honor?

11 THE COURT: Yes.

12 COURTCALL OPERATOR: Mr. Kidwell is back on the line.
13 THE COURT: Okay. Good.

14 Mr. Kidwell, were you able to hear my opening

15 observations?

16 MR. KIDWELL: No, sir. My phone went dead, and I had
17 to get another one from a different room.

18 THE COURT: Okay. Well, I'm going to say it again,
19 perhaps not exactly the way I said it the first time, because I
20 was speaking without notes. But here's where I need your help.
21 First, Mr. Kidwell, I honor your service. I'm a
22 veteran too, although I wouldn't for half a second suggest that
23 I might have made the sacrifices you did. But the issue here
24 that I need your help on is your entitlement to the exact -- to
25 the relief you're asking for, because I have very little doubt

VERITEXT REPORTING COMPANY
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1 that the car drove you nuts. But it's a 2003 and its express
2 warranties expired a long time -- not just before today -- but
3 before the GM case was filed in June of 2009.
4 First I think I need your help in explaining to me why
5 you think I'm not going to be fair; why you think I'm
6 prejudiced against you; and why I need to recuse myself, which
7 is the legal word we use for disqualifying myself.
8 Then --
9 MR. KIDWELL: Well --
10 THE COURT: -- bear with me, because I'm telling you
11 what's on my mind and then I'm going to let you speak your
12 piece as soon as I finish the thoughts that I need you to focus
13 on.
14 MR. KIDWELL: Okay.
15 THE COURT: Then I want you to focus, not so much
16 about what's bugging you with the car, because I understand the
17 car really bugs you. But the issue we have to deal with is
18 what I can or should be doing when the warranty on the car
19 expired a long time ago, when your remedies were limited to
20 getting the car fixed, rather than getting money, and when your
21 rights under the Lemon Law expired some time ago, and when you
22 also lost in the Lemon Law procedures.
23 So the issue from a legal perspective -- and I'm
24 obviously going to cut you some slack because you're not a
25 lawyer -- is not how much the car is bugging you, but what I,

VERITEXT REPORTING COMPANY
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as a bankruptcy judge can do about it under the facts that we
have here.

So whenever you're ready, make your presentation as
you see fit, within a reasonable amount of time. But before
you're done, I need you to focus on the legal issues that I
identify.

MR. KIDWELL: Okay. Thank you, Your Honor. First
off, there's I believe five motions before you right now. And
I'd like to withdraw number 4, the motion for disqualification
of judge.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. KIDWELL: TI've been just stopped because of the
legal process and the dishonesty by GM's attorneys at every
stage of the proceedings.

Now, it seems that two matters, two points that you
brought up, you've been misinformed on. One, I did not lose
the Lemon Law hearing, I won. At the Lemon Law hearing, it was
found that the vehicle far exceeded the requirements for Lemon
Law relief, and I met all the requirements, every single one.
And they said that the car had a manufacturing defect that was
substantially imparted and that the motor was no good. The
transmission was no good. The wiring was no good. The doors
would fly open when you drove it.

And apparently what happened was, this was the last

General Motors S-10 Pickup being made, it was the last coming
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off the assembly line, and they used the wrong parts, and they
couldn't fix it until they got -- after ordering parts, which
they told me would be two years or so later. So I was stuck
with a truck that would sporadically die at a red light, wasn't
safe to drive, and everything in the world was wrong with it.
So I went through the Lemon Law process and proved this.

What happened was in Florida's Lemon Law process, they
found that there was a technicality, based on we now know,
because it's been proven in other courts, that General Motors
paid a Sitel Corporation in Tampa to lie and commit perjury at
their Lemon Law hearings, and they have Sitel employees
claiming to be General Motors employees. This happened -- this
was discovered by the Ohio appeals court.

And what they did was, on this technicality, I'm
required to give them notice by certified mail that there's a
defect. Well, they claimed that I never served them by
certified mail after they found out that all my records had
been destroyed by Hurricane Charlie when my house was
destroyed. So they paid a Sitel employee in Tampa to lie and
say that she was a General Motors employee in Detroit, when
she's never ever been to Detroit.

So I -- because of them lying and saying this, the
technicality was that they got what's called in Florida, under
Florida's Lemon Law, a last chance to fix my defective vehicle.

So I won -- I should have gotten relief right there, but
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because they had lied and said that notice of defect was not
served on them by certified mail, they got a last chance.

Florida statutes give them ten dollars -- I mean, ten
days to perform their last chance. They had ten days to fix
the defect after the Lemon Law court gives them a last chance
effort. I have been -- I have been waiting seven years for
them to comply with this ten-day last chance to fix the
vehicle.

Now, under Florida Lemon Law, the Florida Lemon Law
rights are still in effect, because under Florida's Lemon Laws,
I sent you a copy of it, I believe I filed it in the case
numerous times, but under Statute 681, which is Florida's Lemon
Law, and the chapter is cited at Motor Vehicle Warranty
Enforcement Act, the enforcement act says that any violations
by a manufacturer, gives me a right to pursue this. And
specifically, part of Florida's Lemon Law is going to Florida's
state courts. And it says that it becomes what's known as a
fraudulent business practice when the manufacturer violates
Florida's Lemon Law, as they did.

So I exercised my rights under the Lemon Law and took
it to Florida State Court. They -- General Motor's attorneys
kept trying to avoid a hearing on the merits using any delaying
tactic they can. And this same law firm was found guilty of
illegally using these tactics and made to pay three times the

amount to other Florida Lemon Law victims.
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I was finally getting ready for a hearing on this
right before the bankruptcy came out. So the bankruptcy came
out, and then General Motors had the New GM attorneys go to the
court the day after you signed the order saying that Lemon
Law -- state Lemon Law obligations are an acquired liability
from the New General Motors. The day after you signed the law
saying that, they went to the state court here where I have my
Lemon Act Law action pending, and lied to the state court and
said that they was New, because they said that Lemon Law
obligations belonged to the 0ld General Motors, and were
protected by your bankruptcy court.

So the Lemon Law is still active under Florida law. I
have a right to pursue this before the state court when they
violate the chapter. They have since admitted that they had
violated the chapter. They put it in writing that -- because
when I tried to sue the Sitel employee for committing perjury
at the hearing, they told me then that they admitted that she
was never a General Motors employee, was never in Detroit, and
that she actually was a Sitel Corporation employee.

So they violated Florida's Lemon Law entitling me to
three times the damages from state court, which is part of the
Lemon Law process. And it was actually after the day after
your order when the -- it was the New General Motors that
committed this illegal act, went to the state court and lied to

them, saying that the state Lemon Law obligations are not part
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of the sales order, that they're not an acquired liability of
the New General Motors.

I think what would solve a lot of time in this case is
if you could clarify right now, are state Lemon Law actions an
assumed liability of the New General Motors. Can we have a
decision on that?

THE COURT: On the New General Motors?

MR. KIDWELL: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I think I got to give the lawyer from New
General Motors a chance to be heard before I issue a ruling on
it.

MR. KIDWELL: Okay. Well, it's my understanding that
General Motors made a deal with nine state attorneys and also
with the -- so it was nine state attorneys that lodged
objections in this case to the sales of General Motors. Also
the Center for Auto Safety, Consumer Action, Consumer's
Reliability and Safety, and the National Association of
Consumer Advocates, all filing objections to the GM bankruptcy
sale, because it attempted to minimize General Motors from
state Lemon Laws.

Well, General Motors made a deal with the state
attorneys, they made a deal with the Center for Auto Safety and
Consumer Action and all these groups. They have -- if they
dropped their objections, that they would make Lemon Law

commitments part -- an assumed liability for the New General
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1 Motors.

2 And the New General Mot -- in fact, Section 2(a) (7) of
3 the amendment and restated master sale and purchase agreement

4 between 0ld GM and New GM, provides that New GM assumes all

5 liabilities arising not just under express written warranties,
6 but they also are responsible for all obligations under state

7 Lemon Laws. That's what it says specifically in your court

8 order and in the sales -- the restated sale and purchase

9 agreement.

10 So unless it says one thing and means something else
11 they're responsible for all state Lemon Law obligations. And
12 Florida State Lemon Laws state that I am still entitled to

13 relief. 1In fact, I'm entitled to three times relief, because
14 they committed fraud.

15 THE COURT: Okay. Anything else?

16 MR. KIDWELL: Is there any other concern you have

17 about the issue, because I can prove beyond any doubt that the
18 Lemon Law has not expired in this case. And I am confident

19 enough that they are still liable under Florida's Lemon Law, in
20 fact, has been ongoing continuously. It was in the state court
21 until they lied to the state court about two and a half years
22 ago to freeze that case. But if they had not lied to the state
23 court about the New General Motors being responsible for Lemon
24 Laws, we would now have a trial on it.
25 And they also lied about me not prevailing at the
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1 Lemon Law hearing. I sent a judgment order to this court and
2 to every other court that specifically states that the vehicle
3 far exceeds the Lemon Law requirements. The only thing was, is
4 they were given a last chance opportunity to repair it. And
5 under Florida's Lemon Laws they have ten days to take this last
6 chance.
7 It should also be noted that under Florida's Lemon
8 Laws I have a right to appeal this to what they call a new car
9 arbitration board. And they denied me my right to do that
10 because they sent the -- General Motors' attorney sent the
11 appeal form that has to be signed within seven days or
12 something -- he sent my appeal form to a car dealership in St.
13 Petersburg, and I had never in my life lived in St. Petersburg,
14 and I didn't discover this until I sued them in state court and
15 asked for them to provide the form. I told them that I was
16 never provided my form, and they wouldn't let me take it to the
17 new car arbitration board.
18 So there's been nothing but illegal conduct by General
19 Motors in this to steal 30,000 dollars from me and my family.
20 And it should be noted, they spent probably a million dollars
21 on attorneys of the taxpayers' dollars to steal this 30,000
22 dollars from me. 1It's outrageous. They should not only have
23 to pay me what the Florida's Lemon Laws say I have a right to,
24 but they should be prosecuted and put in jail for this.
25 You know, it's beyond outrageous. They caused me to
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1 have three heart attacks now. I had one about June or July of
2 last year. I had one Christmas Eve, I fell down and when I
3 fell down I broke my elbow, shattered my whole elbow, and then
4 I had one just about three weeks ago -- two or three weeks ago,
5 September 4th. And it's all from this dishonest conduct by
6 General Motors, in this case, where they lied to you and said
7 that I didn't prevail at the hearing, when General Motors'
8 attorneys -- General Motors was a party at the Lemon Law

9 process. They knew what the judge says, and they know they're

10 lying when they say I didn't prevail. And they know they're

11 lying when they say they didn't break Florida's law and pay an
12 employee of the Sitel Corporation to commit perjury and claim
13 that she was a GM manager in Detroit.

14 You know, they should be put in jail for their conduct
15 in this case. So I guess that's -- I'm sorry to be upset

16 towards you, but there's been so much criminal conduct, it's

17 like they operate like the Mafia and they're stealing our

18 taxpayer dollars to engage in this illegal conduct.

19 And the bankruptcy court should stop it, because it's
20 wrong to take our taxpayer dollars intended to bail out General
21 Motors and pay attorneys to lie and commit perjury and do all
22 this illegal stuff just to cheat a disabled veteran out thirty
23 grand. I paid them thirty grand, in good faith, for a truck,
24 that they left sitting in my driveway and had to stop running

25 the day I bought it.
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So, you know, when I drove it home, it stalled the
first time. So they stole thirty grand from me. They've lied
in every court. They get by within -- they spent probably a
million of the taxpayers' dollars on law firm after law firm.
They use legal technicalities to keep the truth out of the
courts. And the truth is, they paid a woman to commit perjury.
They stole thirty grand from me. And I still -- it's still an
active legal Lemon Law claim that's in the state court that
they've stopped by lying and saying that the New General Motors
doesn't have to honor warranties.

But I guess that's it. I'm sorry to take so long.

THE COURT: Okay. That's okay. Thank you, Mr.
Kidwell.

MR. KIDWELL: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. I'll hear from New GM now. Mr.
Steinberg, would you come to the main lectern, please.

MR. STEINBERG: Good morning, Your Honor. I think Mr.
Kidwell's presentation highlighted the fact that a lot of what
he has complained about were acts made by 0Old General Motors in
the conduct of hearings that took place before the bankruptcy.
And all of those actions were not the actions that have been
assumed by New General Motors under the asset purchase
agreement.

A lot of what Mr. Kidwell has argued here with regard

to the Lemon Law, was presented to the federal district court.
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And the federal district court has actually ruled on the
matter. There are four orders that have been entered in this
case which I think we would like to focus Your Honor's
attention to and has been laid out in our presentations before.

One is an order by the federal district court on
September 10, which dismissed New General Motors with --
dismissed all claims against New General Motors with prejudice.
Then the Eleventh Circuit said that there was a pending motion
for reconsideration, and therefore they wanted the district
court to further act on the complaint and the motion for
reconsideration before it would then entertain any appeal to
the September 10th order.

And so then, on December 28, 2010, the district court
rendered a decision -- and all of these have been provided to
Your Honor. And there, the district court judge, in a
decision, dismissed the Lemon Law claims with prejudice. And
on page 6 and 7 of the decision, it highlighted what Mr.
Kidwell had argued and said that it interpreted the asset
purchase agreement to provide for limited relief under what was
defined under the asset purchase agreement, as Lemon Law --
Lemon Law was actually a defined term under the APA -- but
dismissed with prejudice the Lemon Law rights.

Then in the summer of this year -- and then in the
context of dismissing the Lemon Law claims, it said that since

there was an ambiguity as to what Mr. Kidwell was claiming on
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1 the express warranty claims, they were going to dismiss the

2 express warranty claims without prejudice, with leave for Mr.

3 Kidwell to replead those actions. When Mr. Kidwell did not

4 replead those actions, in I think July of this year, the

5 district court filed a sua sponte order to show cause as to why
6 the matter shouldn't be dismissed. And in August of this year,
7 the court dismissed the complaint without prejudice.

8 And then in September 15th, of this year, the Eleventh
9 Circuit ruled on the appeal of the original September 10, 2010
10 order of the district court, which had dismissed New GM with

11 prejudice, and decided to affirm the appeal for failure to

12 prosecute.

13 And so right now, we have a district court that has

14 dismissed the Lemon Law claims with prejudice, and any appeal
15 of any claims that had gone from New Gen -- with respect to New
16 General Motors as reflected in the September 10, 2010 order of
17 the federal district court, has been dismissed with prejudice
18 by the Eleventh Circuit.

19 THE COURT: Pause, please, Mr. Steinberg.
20 MR. KIDWELL: Your Honor --
21 THE COURT: Bear with me, Mr. Kidwell, I'm asking Mr.
22 Steinberg a question.
23 Mr. Steinberg, your focus, understandably, is on New
24 GM. To what extent do any of the motions Mr. Kidwell has
25 raised, in your view, call upon me to decide 0ld GM's liability
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in contrast to yours?

MR. STEINBERG: I don't know whether Mr. Kidwell has
filed a proof of claim in the bankruptcy case with regard to
any claims against 0Old GM. The sole focus of the motions that
are before you today are with regard to New General Motors'
culpability. And there, the asset purchase agreement, I think,
specifically talked about what New GM was assuming. So I don't
think for purposes of today you have to rule on the 0Old General
Motors situation.

THE COURT: Okay. Continue, please.

MR. STEINBERG: The Lemon Law claims are defined in
Section 1.1 of the asset purchase agreement. And it references
back to the express warranty claims. And therefore, the
decision by New General Motors to take on Lemon Law claims were
the duties to repair.

Here the duties to repair had expired through the
express warranties in 2006. Mr. Kidwell refers to the fact
that he won the Lemon Law decision. There was an arbitrator
decision in 2005. And indeed Mr. Kidwell lost in that action,
because he had not given 0ld GM the opportunity to do the final
last opportunity to do a repair.

Mr. Kidwell's argument is that the was deprived of
that opportunity because of either the acts of certain parties
or notices were sent in the wrong spot. All of those things

may lead to a claim against 0ld GM. They aren't the claims
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1 that were assumed by New GM. New GM specifically did not take
2 on all warranty claims. It only took on the express warranty
3 claims that were in effect in the glove compartment. They were
4 limited to the duties to repair. They weren't limited -- they
5 didn't assume damage-type claims at all. And they didn't
6 assume damage-type claims under the Lemon Law either. It was
7 only a duty to repair. They had expired.
8 If Mr. Kidwell has a grievance against attorneys,

9 people, actions, all taken before the bankruptcy, he has

10 whatever those rights are against those people as a claim in
11 the bankruptcy case here. But those aren't the claims of New
12 General Motors. Those aren't the claims that New General

13 Motors took as part of the asset purchase agreement.

14 THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

15 Mr. Kidwell, I'll give you a chance to reply.

16 MR. KIDWELL: Yes, sir. This is why I asked that all
17 attorneys be specifically ordered to abide by the ABA, American
18 Bar Association Model Rules of Conduct and be specifically

19 ordered to be honest, because I'd state under oath that that
20 attorney has just lied about all of the material facts. And I
21 can prove -- I have proofs he lied about all the material

22 facts.

23 In the first place, Florida's Lemon Law has not

24 expired, and according to Chapter 681 I have a right to pursue
25 it in state court. In fact, I'll tell you the exact statute
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1 that says it. And I did pursue it -- timely pursue it in state
2 court. And it was pending and was getting ready for a hearing.
3 And New General Motors -- not 0Old General Motors, but the day
4 after you entered the order, I state under oath that New
5 General Motors notified the state court and said that were not
6 responsible for Lemon Law, that they would not honor Lemon
7 Laws.
8 Florida Lemon Law statute 681.111, Unfair or Deceptive
9 Trade Practice says that, "A violation by a manufacturer of
10 this chapter is an unfair or deceptive trade practice as
11 defined in Part II of Chapter 501". Then Florida Lemon Law
12 681.112, Consumer Remedies, says that as part of Florida's
13 Lemon Laws, "A consumer may file an action to recover damages
14 caused by a violation of this chapter. The court shall --
15 COURTCALL OPERATOR: Hold on a second. Just a moment.
16 You still there?
17 Your Honor?
18 THE COURT: The judge is.
19 COURTCALL OPERATOR: Just one moment. We have a
20 disconnection on the other phone. Just a moment, sir.
21 You're back.
22 MR. KIDWELL: Okay. Hello?
23 THE COURT: Yes, Mr. Kidwell, continue please.
24 MR. KIDWELL: I'm sorry, my phone went dead for a
25 second.
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1 Florida Lemon Law 681.112 Consumer Remedies says, "A
2 consumer may file an action in state court to recover damages
3 caused by a violation of this chapter." That's my state
4 lawsuit I was telling you about. It says, "The court shall
5 award a consumer who prevails in such action the amount of any
6 pecuniary loss, litigation costs, reasonable attorney's fees,
7 and appropriate equitable relief."

8 Now, Florida's Lemon Law gave me a right to pursue my
9 state lawsuit. The state -- but New General Motors, the day
10 after you issued the order -- the New General Motors, lied to

11 the state court and said that the sales order made General

12 Motors immune from all state Lemon Laws. They lied to stop my
13 state lawsuit.

14 Now, what he's telling you about the federal lawsuit,
15 I filed a federal lawsuit, and under the Lemon Laws, they

16 claimed I filed a federal lawsuit, because the New General

17 Motors and the 0ld General Motors conspired together and they
18 lied to the state court and denied me my right to the state

19 courts. They denied me access to the state court for the Lemon
20 Law process.

21 And now what happened was, the federal court issued --
22 the federal court ignored me as a pro se litigant, rubber

23 stamped -- what the General Motor's attorney said. So the

24 federal state court rubber-stamped and issued a court order

25 saying that there was an immunity for the New General Motors
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from state Lemon Laws.

Well, then I went and asked the court to reconsider.
And as an alternative I filed a mandamus from the appeals
court, and I attached -- I copied this court's sales order
saying that they were responsible for Lemon Laws. Because the
federal court found that General Motors had intentionally lied,
they issued a new court order. That's why there's four orders.
They issued a new court order saying, yes, the sales order does
say that they are responsible for Lemon Law actions, and they
changed their order.

Well, now, they gave me thirty days or something to
appeal. They did dismiss the board of directors for personal
liability, but they said that they reversed that and said that
the Lemon Law was an obligation of New General Motors. Well, I
appealed that order, and then when I appealed it, the district
court went and decided to change their mind, and they issued a
new order. So the appeals court dismissed my appeal saying it
wasn't from a final order, because the district court was
changing its final order.

So then I appealed that order. And the district court
then gave me sixty days or some time to file an amended
complaint. And the new requirements were I was addressing the
Lemon Law evidently and not addressing the personal liability
of the board of directors. But they did give me a time to file

an amended claim. And I notified the federal court that I was
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1 having heart problems, and because of my health, couldn't
2 comply with the deadline. Well, I asked them -- I went to the

3 hospital. I had a heart attack. I was telling the truth. But

4 I was too ill to comply. And also, it's too complex for me to
5 comply with, if the court wants me to reword it.

6 But this whole federal lawsuit is about -- about them
7 lying to the state court. 1It's not about the Lemon Law. The
8 Lemon Law is still active and in state court, and it's just

9 been held up because them lying and saying that your court

10 order prevents it when your court doesn't.

11 So all these court orders and all this contradictory
12 stuff is happening because General Motors constantly lies and
13 some -- one of these courts needs to order their attorneys to

14 be truthful and get to the bottom of this. As long as they're

15 allowed to lie, they're going to do what the attorney just did
16 to you in your court, and they just tell you a bunch of lies.
17 I've got my witness -- I've got the records to prove it that he
18 lied, you know.

19 The Lemon Law has not expired, because Statute --

20 Chapter 681 in Florida says they if I file a case in court with
21 them and here like I did, that if the Lemon Law is still

22 active, I'm entitled to a decision. It doesn't matter if the
23 state case is pending twenty years. The Lemon Law is still

24 going on until that state case is resolved and I get a

25 decision. And then I have a right to appeal it before this
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1 court.

2 THE COURT: Mr. Kidwell, do you agree that whoever

3 owes you this duty, the duty is limited to fixing the truck?

4 MR. KIDWELL: No, sir. That's where Florida's Lemon

5 Laws are unique. They -- under Florida's Lemon Laws, as I

6 said, if they didn't take their last chance, within ten days,

7 which they didn't -- oh, I hate to change the subject, but I

8 want to point out one more --

9 THE COURT: Please don't change the subject.

10 MR. KIDWELL: Sir?

11 THE COURT: Please don't change the subject.

12 MR. KIDWELL: No, it's just because he said -- he said
13 that I did not give Old General Motors an opportunity to repair
14 the truck, and I can prove beyond any doubt that he lied to

15 you -- that General Motors' attorney lied to you when he said I
16 didn't give him an opportunity. It sat in my driveway and

17 didn't move for seven years blocking my driveway, and I sat

18 here waiting, me, my wife, and child, waiting seven years for
19 them to come repair it, and they never came here once. And I
20 called them on the phone and begged them to come repair it.
21 And I filed the motions in state court asking when
22 they was going to come repair it. So when he says that I
23 didn't give them an opportunity to repair it, he is lying to
24 you and he should be found in contempt. Until we get some
25 truth from the attorneys you're never going to be able to make
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a proper decision, because they keep lying to you.

I gave them every opportunity. Under Florida laws,
they had ten days to come, get it working -- if it's broke down
and fix it. So I would like to have that attorney explain to
you how I kept General Motors from coming in and fixing that
car within ten days, when I've been sitting here watching my
driveway for seven years, begging them to come get the darn
thing out of my driveway and fix it. You know.

He lied to you and you should get to the bottom of why
he intentionally lied to you and then we can find out what the
truth is in this case. So I'd like to make an oral motion that
the attorney explain to you --

THE COURT: I can't accept oral motions, Mr. Kidwell.

MR. KIDWELL: Your Honor?

THE COURT: I cannot accept oral motions. 1I've
already got five written ones from you. That's the way you're
supposed to do it.

MR. KIDWELL: Oh. Can you accept my testimony under
oath that he lied to you?

THE COURT: Not in that fashion. Under my case
management orders, the first appearance is a non-evidentiary
one. And I hold and take evidence by testimony if, but only
if, T think there are disputed issues of fact.

MR. KIDWELL: Well, he's trying to obstructing justice

in your court by lying to you about the facts, and I can prove
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1 beyond any doubt that he lied about every fact he's spoken.
2 THE COURT: All right. Thank you.
3 MR. KIDWELL: And it is not true. But getting back to
4 it, the Lemon Law case is still pending and forwarded, and the
5 state case wasn't closed, it was just suspended indefinitely
6 because they said that the sales order makes all Lemon Law
7 obligations immune.

8 Now, one thing that was filed, all these contradictory
9 orders from the federal court and everything else, the federal
10 case is not decided. The federal case kept issuing orders that
11 the appeals court said were not final orders. And in the end,

12 the federal court agreed with me that I had claims that they

13 want me to file an amended complaint with all these complex --

14 that abides by certain standards. And so I filed an appeal

15 asking the Eleventh Circuit to appoint counsel. And my appeal

16 to the Eleventh Circuit is that under the Eleventh Circuit

17 guidelines, even though attorneys are not a right in this whole
18 case, when a case is so complex and a person is in too poor of

19 health, to comply and it would violate my doctor's orders in

20 trying to do a complex -- involved in a complex amended

21 complaint like that they need to appoint counsel.

22 So that's where it stands right now. All the stuff he
23 told you is nothing but a bunch of bull. The district court

24 case -- the district court, in the end, said that I have

25 claims. I have to refile an amended complaint, with just those
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claims. And then I appealed that to the Eleventh Circuit,
where it's at right now, because I'm in too poor health. I
want an attorney appointed to file this amended complaint that
they say I have a right to.

Now, Florida appeals in the Eleventh Circuit were
found as moot because the court kept changing its orders
because it found out General Motors was lying to me, and it
kept having to change its orders. And what happened was, as
they kept -- the appeals court said they have -- it wasn't a
final order because the district court kept changing its
orders. But where it stands, it's knocked out and the district
court order -- where it stands in the district court, is that
they want me to file an amended complaint, and I'm not
medically able to. I'm asking for counsel to be appointed,
because I don't have the funds to appoint an attorney -- to pay
for an attorney.

It would stop all this in the district court and it
would stop all this confusion if this court had addressed my
request for judicial notice to really clarify what the sales
order says. You know, it would stop a whole lot of litigation
if this court would just issue a decision, are state Lemon Laws
an obligation of the New General Motors, are they an assumed
liability of New General Motors or is the statement in the sale
order a bunch of baloney. And that would solve a whole bunch

of this litigation.
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THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

MR. KIDWELL: And if there's any way this Court can
decide if the statement and the sales order saying that state
Lemon Law obligations are an obligation of New General Motors,
is that a truthful statement in the sales order or is it just
baloney that it's an obligation to 0Old General Motors. Because
I'm sort of confused. I don't even know -- I mean, clearly the
district court is confused. They keep changing their orders.
They don't know one way or another.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

Mr. Steinberg, since he said so much, I'm going to let
you sur-reply, but limit it to stuff that he said in his reply.

You may, but you really don't need to tell me that --
if you want to deny lying to me, you don't need to say that.

MR. STEINBERG: Thank you, Your Honor. 1In the
December 28, 2010 decision of the district court, the district
court denied without -- dismissed without prejudice the right
to replead the express warranty claim, as I said before. But
I'd like to read an excerpt from page 7 of the decision which
discusses the plaintiff's Lemon Law related claims.

It says on the second line, "Plaintiff's allegation
that defendant 'did intentionally commit a fraud on Florida's
Lemon Law process' is not within the limited scope of the sale
approval order." And then it has some citations to the order.

"Specifically, plaintiff's Lemon Law related claims
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1 are really for fraud and obstructions of justice rather than an
2 action under the substantive provisions of the statute." And
3 then it has some citations to the order and then to the Ames v.
4 Winnebago case, and then it concludes by saying, "Thus Counts
5 IV and V of plaintiff's amended complaint were properly
6 dismissed with prejudice."
7 So I think Mr. Kidwell is a little confused as to what
8 the Florida district court did do. It did talk about a
9 dismissal without prejudice to the express warranty claims,
10 subject to his right to replead. So it was clear whether he
11 was asserting the type of warranty claim that New GM had
12 assumed, which was the repair responsibility only. But with
13 regard to the Lemon Law claims, the district court was clear,
14 that that was a dismissal with prejudice, and it had ruled on
15 that in the connection with the motion for consideration.
16 THE COURT: Mr. Steinberg, I mean, I assume your fees
17 are being paid by New GM and they aren't being paid by the
18 creditors of this estate?
19 MR. STEINBERG: That's correct.
20 THE COURT: Is there some reason why you and Mr.
21 Kidwell didn't just settle this thing by an agreement that he
22 would throw out all of the other stuff and that you'd just fix
23 the damn truck?
24 MR. STEINBERG: With respect to New General Motors or
25 0ld General Motors?
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1 THE COURT: I think it's clear, based upon my reading

2 of the briefs and the underlying statutes, that New GM doesn't

3 have any liability for anything other than fixing the truck.

4 Which I assume might cost more than a couple of thousand

5 dollars, but somehow I suspect costs a lot less than it's cost

6 to litigate this matter.

7 But if Old GM didn't give the proper notice of the

8 last clear chance to fix the truck, then it may -- and I'm

9 talking more as a lawyer or as a judge than Mr. Kidwell did --
10 then it may not be able to invoke the condition that would have
11 brought all of its Lemon Law liabilities to an end, in which
12 case the duty to fix the truck might have continued.

13 Now, I can't believe that the duty to fix the truck
14 would have cost more than giving him a new truck. And it

15 probably would have cost a lot less. But this controversy's
16 been going on kind of like Dickens wrote about a couple of

17 hundred years ago, several Dickens books, not just "Bleak

18 House". And I could deal with this on the merits. And if I
19 deal with it on the merits, I'm going to likely say that
20 whatever Mr. Kidwell has is a pre-petition claim, except to the
21 extent that you're not able to contend that all Lemon
22 liabilities ended, in which case your liability would be
23 limited to fixing the truck. And I don't know what you'd do,
24 and I'm not going to decide without more, if you can't fix the
25 truck.
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But my reaction -- and this isn't a legal ruling, it's
what I would do if I were holding you both in a private
conference room or if I were a mediator, is say Mr. Kidwell's
got to give up all of that extra stuff which is way
overreaching, and that somebody should just fix the damn truck.
And that's kind of what I'm scratching my head about.

MR. KIDWELL: Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes, Mr. Kidwell. The question was aimed
at Mr. Steinberg the way I articulated it. But it's really at
both of you guys.

MR. KIDWELL: Yeah. Your Honor, I've sought in good
faith for a settlement conference in the U.S. district court,
and I had their attorneys come down, and their attorneys came
down here and said that under no conditions would they -- were
they going to honor the warranty. So I tried in good faith to
get them to resolve this from the start.

THE COURT: Now, was all of that you asking to get
your truck fixed or to try to break the bank with all of these
other claims? 1If I can be crude about it.

MR. KIDWELL: 1I'd point out to the Court that my -- he
just finally admitted that the federal lawsuit was about their
fraud and the state lawsuit is authorized by Florida's Lemon
Laws, and is about the vehicle. And I'd point out that I was
entitled to -- according to the statute, over 600,000 in

damages.
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1 THE COURT: Yeah, that's the big problem, Mr. Kidwell
2 because you --
3 MR. KIDWELL: But --
4 THE COURT: -- no. Mr. Kidwell, you can't interrupt
5 me. The Court has ruled there was no fraud. 01ld GM and New GM

6 might have been stupid, but they didn't defraud you. And

7 that's a huge difference in the amount of the damages.

8 Now, Mr. Steinberg, I'll hear your perspective.

9 MR. KIDWELL: But, Your Honor, I just wanted to

10 explain that I offered to settle if they would simply honor

11 their warranty.

12 THE COURT: Okay.

13 MR. KIDWELL: I'd point out that despite the mass

14 amount of damages, that I was just trying to get them to honor
15 their warranty. Just like you're telling them now, you know,
16 that they spent all this money on attorneys; it'd be a lot

17 cheaper if you told them to do the right thing that they should

18 have done all along.

19 THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Steinberg?

20 MR. STEINBERG: Your Honor, I want to try to be as

21 precise as I can be with respect to your particular question.
22 When I saw the lengthy procedural history in this case in both
23 the arbitration decision under Lemon Law, the state court

24 proceeding, the federal court proceeding and then the

25 bankruptcy proceeding, all with respect to the original
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purchase of a vehicle which was between 25- and 30,000 dollars,
and knowing what it costs to spend the legal time for all of
that, I had asked the client, wasn't there any way through this
entire process where you could just repair the vehicle and
finish the matter; notwithstanding the fact that he had sued
GM's board for RICOH and other types of violations, but simply
just deal with the car and to repair the car.

And I think they said that -- and I'm doing this from
memory now -- that they felt that any attempt to try to have
done that from the beginning back in '05 and '06 was met with
resistance by Mr. Kidwell, who wanted to pursue his rights
through legal remedies, which were seeking damages way beyond
the cost of the vehicle, and therefore there was never ever the
ability to try to settle it in the way that you had articulated
it.

And I think even when you were trying to ask Mr.
Kidwell whether this could be settled simply by the repair of
the vehicle, because it would be cheaper to do that than to
continue to deal with these pro se pleadings throughout, I
don't think he really gave you a specific response.

But I did ask the same question that Your Honor had,
and that was the response that I got when I asked the question
to my client and to my colleagues in Atlanta who had been
litigating the district court action. And I don't have a

better response than that.
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THE COURT: That's okay. Thank you.

All right. Both sides had an opportunity to speak
their piece?

MR. KIDWELL: Your Honor?

THE COURT: Mr. Kidwell, I can't -- I'm going to let
you speak but I can't let you be repetitious.

MR. KIDWELL: Okay. I just want to point out that I
have a stack of letters from the date the truck broke down to
prove that that's not true that I told them over and over
again, and just come and fix the damn truck. And I asked
for -- moved for the settlement conference again and again in
the state federal court, and each time I said fix the truck.
And you know -- you know give me the money for the truck, you
know.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. KIDWELL: And each time, they have refused. So
his representing to you that I have resisted that's completely
wrong. I am the only one in this case that has tried to
resolve this.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. KIDWELL: And I've tried continuously since the
truck broke down. I agree with you that it's ridiculous that
they're spending this much money on attorneys instead of just
simply resolving it. So I would suggest that you ask him --

point out to him that I do have letters that I have constantly
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1 tried to just get the darn truck, you know, fixed, and that you

2 have him go back to his clients and see if they can't just pay

3 me for the truck like they should have, and resolve everything.

4 THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

5 MR. KIDWELL: It would save everybody a lot of money.

6 THE COURT: Again, we've taken a lot of time on this.

7 I'm ready to rule.

8 MR. KIDWELL: Okay.

9 THE COURT: And my ruling is as follows, to the extent
10 I can rule. First, the motion to recuse me, to disqualify me
11 for not being fair, having been withdraw, I don't need to deal
12 with that.

13 On the merits of the claims -- the remaining claims,
14 and we have to keep our eye on the ball here, because these

15 claims are aimed at New GM rather than 0ld GM -- it's clear

16 that all claims other than whatever Lemon Law claims might be
17 surviving, after the district court action after reviewing the
18 purchase and sale agreement, cannot be asserted. So what is
19 left?

20 There is one thing left which is getting the car

21 fixed. And whether the claim for getting the car fixed

22 survives, depends upon the extent, if any, to which any Lemon
23 Law obligations under Florida law survived as late as the time
24 the purchase and sale agreement was entered into and became

25 effective, which was shortly after I issued that decision on
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the 4th of July back in 20009.
Now, Mr. Steinberg, on behalf of 0ld GM -- excuse me,
New GM, properly observes that to the extent, if any, to which

New GM might have any claims there, they would be simply for

fixing the vehicle or possibly -- though I don't decide it
today -- replacing the vehicle if fixing it isn't doable.
The courts -- the Florida courts have already ruled --

or perhaps I should say federal court in Florida has ruled
there was no fraud. So all we're talking about is getting the
vehicle fixed. Now, Mr. Kidwell contends -- it hasn't been
proven, but I well understand his contention, that although he
acknowledges that GM -- which at the time was 0ld GM -- had a
last clear chance to fix the vehicle to make all of this go
away, he says it was sent to the wrong address that didn't give
him the notice that he needed to invoke that remedy.

I can't decide that issue. But I note that if his
contention is right, what that means is that you would have, in
substance, a do-over. That New GM would then say, yeah, we'll
give you another opportunity to fix the car. And the car would
be fixed. But you don't break the bank under those
circumstances -- and I said car, I apologize, I know it's a
truck -- and you fix the truck.

So all we have left here, gentlemen is the duty to fix
the truck and possibly a pre-petition claim against 0ld GM

which isn't before me today, but which, if it could be
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1 asserted, would be subject to all of the usual stuff about

2 filing a proof of claim and res judicata, which means it's

3 already been decided, as a consequence of ruling in the Florida
4 federal court.

5 Now, vis-a-vis New GM's duty under the remainder, I'm
6 going to take that under submission. I am going to strongly

7 urge you -- both sides -- to make this issue go away before I
8 issue the ruling -- the final ruling, based on the obvious

9 common sense thing to do here, which is to -- and I won't use
10 the obscenity -- fix the truck and abandon all of the other

11 claims. You have thirty days to try to make that happen. If
12 you don't, I will issue a ruling, which may be embarrassing to
13 one side or both.

14 We'll take a five-minute recess, and then I'll take
15 the Buttita --

16 MR. KIDWELL: Your Honor?

17 THE COURT: Yes.

18 MR. KIDWELL: Just one thing. I would just like to
19 ask that you replace "fix the truck" with "replace the purchase
20 price", because everyplace, under Florida Lemon Law, it says
21 that consumer is returned the purchase price. And fixing the
22 truck now after seven years, won't be much help after
23 spending -- you know, I paid for a new truck. So is there any
24 possible way to change it -- obeying Florida Lemon Law
25 refunding the purchase price?
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THE COURT: I'm not good enough on knowing the Florida
Lemon Law without having to do all sorts of research to study
that.

MR. KIDWELL: I can send you --

THE COURT: No, no. Please. This has been briefed
enough. One of the books I was referring to by Charles Dickens
was called "Bleak House", which talks about a litigation going
on forever. And this litigation is getting to be in
contention. Now it may be that the cost of litigating --

MR. KIDWELL: If I could --

THE COURT: -- no. Mr. Kidwell, you can't talk over
me.

MR. KIDWELL: Okay.

THE COURT: That's one of the rules we have in the
federal courts. Okay?

MR. KIDWELL: Okay.

THE COURT: It may be that the difference isn't that
big a deal. What you guys can do in making your own deal,
gives you much more flexibility than I can where I'm required
to rule within the confines of the law.

It also might be that replacing the whole truck is
cheaper than continuing this litigation for the next I don't
know how many years or whatever it's going to take. But I'm
not going to decide an issue that I'm not prepared to decide

today.
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1 Mr. Steinberg?

2 MR. STEINBERG: Your Honor, so that I have

3 something -- I think you were clear, Your Honor, in what you

4 suggested and what you told both sides. But I would ask if I

5 can ask you to ask Mr. Kidwell whether he would be satisfied in
6 dropping all claims against New General Motors -- New General

7 Motors, if either the truck was either repaired so that it's

8 workable or that the original purchase price of the truck was

9 refunded, so that I have something clear to talk to my client
10 about as stating what Mr. Kidwell's position might be.

11 THE COURT: All right. Mr. Kidwell, do you want to

12 respond to that question?

13 MR. KIDWELL: Yes. As he knows, they found everything
14 wrong, from wiring to motor to transmission. I would be

15 agreeable to return of the purchase price.

16 THE COURT: You want a return of the purchase price

17 rather than a new truck?

18 MR. KIDWELL: I don't think the repair could ever fix
19 it, since they found even the doors and body defective. It was
20 the last one to come off the assembly line. Everything on it's
21 wrong.
22 THE COURT: No, I understand that. But there was the
23 third option which is getting a replacement truck of comparable
24 value.
25 MR. KIDWELL: Yeah. I don't think I really ever want
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1 to have to -- to get --

2 THE COURT: All right. But the most important aspect
3 of Mr. Steinberg's question is, that you're prepared to drop

4 everything other than the claim for your money back?

5 MR. KIDWELL: Right.

6 THE COURT: Okay.

7 MR. KIDWELL: Yeah.

8 THE COURT: I think he answered your question, Mr.

9 Steinberg. If you require me to rule on that, after thirty

10 days, that is, the claims other than what amounts to repair or
11 rescission, you've got a reservation of rights on that, and so
12 does Mr. Kidwell.

13 MR. STEINBERG: Okay. Now, Your Honor, there were --
14 THE COURT: I think I telegraphed my leanings in that
15 regard.

16 MR. STEINBERG: I heard them, Your Honor. The --

17 there were a number of other motions, some of them are

18 sanctions motions. I don't know whether you were ruling on

19 those.
20 THE COURT: All are denied as moot.
21 MR. STEINBERG: Thank you, Judge.
22 THE COURT: Right. All right. We'll recess until
23 twenty of 12 and then I'll hear the substantial contribution
24 claim.
25 (Recess from 11:32 a.m. until 11:40 a.m.)
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THE COURT: Okay. The Buttita substantial
contribution claim. I see Mr. Reinsel and Mr. Jones.

Folks, make your presentations as you see fit and T
want you to address the following questions and concerns,
mainly you, Mr. Reinsel. I've read all the papers, including
Mr. Inselbuch's submission and of course Mr. Jones.

I got to tell you, you're starting on your own one-
yard line, Mr. Reinsel. And the principal point that I want
both sides to address is the wvalue, if any, to the estate vis-
a-vis my structuring the form of my order insofar as -- and my
ruling insofar as it might affect future claimants who aren't
within the meaning of the Code creditors, to keep it within
constitutional limits which, not being a constitutional scholar
I, nevertheless, recognized when I saw it and the question as
to whether that aspect had any value.

The more troublesome problem you have, Mr. Reinsel, is
one that I've dealt with in too many of my cases, of course
Adelphia is the poster child for it, where parties are prepared
to bring down a whole case, with disastrous consequences for
everybody, to advance their own private agendas. And while the
efforts to oppose the 363 sale and, if I'm not mistaken, to
join in the stay request even after I had opposed -- after I
had approved the 363 sale, at a time when the direct testimony
affidavits proffered by the debtor and by the U.S. government

made clear to the whole country the disastrous consequences of
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1 a disapproval of a 363 sale, how you can be contending that

2 that is a contribution at all, much less a substantial

3 contribution.

4 I don't feel the urge to be as scathing in my

5 disapproval of that as I was when I when I saw the efforts in
6 Adelphia, but that's what you've got to help me with, Mr.

7 Reinsel, if anybody could.

8 I'll hear from you first and from Mr. Jones.

9 MR. REINSEL: Thank you, Your Honor. Ron Reinsel,
10 Caplin & Drysdale on behalf of Mr. Buttita.

11 Without going into the whole background, Judge,

12 because I'm sure you're familiar.

13 THE COURT: That's when you and I first met, if I

14 recall. Well, I knew a couple of your partners.

15 MR. REINSEL: It was, Your Honor.

16 THE COURT: I think I saw you when you were opposing
17 the 363.

18 MR. REINSEL: That's correct, Judge. And let me focus
19 about what the thrust of Mr. Buttita's opposition to the 363
20 sale was and it was -- it was to focus specifically on the
21 constitutional due process issues with respect to the future
22 claimants.
23 What the sale order -- what the sale was intended to
24 do, what the purchase agreement specifically said and what you
25 were being requested to do was to provide that the sale was
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1 going to be free and clear of "All liabilities to third parties
2 for death, personal injury or other personal injury to persons
3 or damage to property arising out of asbestos exposure". It
4 was a broad, injunctive relief given to New GM to leave all of
5 those liabilities behind at 0l1ld GM despite the fact two things.
6 One, 0ld GM had already acknowledged, through it's 10K filings
7 and other filings, that it new, at least an estimated almost
8 650 million dollars worth of asbestos personal injury claims
9 would be brought against it. By their very nature those
10 claims, most of them because of the long latency period between
11 exposure and actually manifesting a disease, most of those
12 claims would arise, if at all, in the future.
13 What we had here was a buyer taking on what, under
14 most state law constructs, would have really established
15 successor liability to allow those future arising claims to
16 assert them against the successor entity. Yet, we had a sale
17 order or a proposed sale order that would have completely
18 shielded them and having a liquidating debtor where when those
19 claims finally did arise, matured, ripened, the existing estate
20 of what was in effect a liquidation debtor would have been
21 administered. Those claimants would have had no recovery from
22 the old entity because it would have dried up and gone. And
23 from the new entity nominally because this Court's order would
24 have protected it.
25 Where we were -- now, what the government said is we
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1 didn't really provide a contribution because what Judge Gerber
2 did was simply clarify what the constitutional limits were
3 anyway. Except what they would have held out there is an order
4 from this Court that says we are shielded. Come and sue us in
5 state court, in federal courts around the country, to establish
6 your own constitutional rights, which we're going to try to
7 extinguish through this Court's order.
8 What we did, Judge, and we appreciate your, I think,
9 thoughtful consideration, that those future claimants could not
10 have received effective notice of the sale. Could not have
11 asserted their objections to the sale in any kind of fashion
12 whatsoever.
13 Now Mr. Buttita, as you noted, was not a future
14 claimant, he's a current claimant. He was asserting those
15 objections on behalf of a larger class, a class that --
16 THE COURT: In which he was not a member.
17 MR. REINSEL: In which he was not a member.
18 THE COURT: And let me tell you what's bugging me, Mr.
19 Reinsel.
20 MR. REINSEL: Yes, sir.
21 THE COURT: And you can compare and contrast your
22 behavior in this case with that of the New York AG's office
23 when we had an issue on confirmation. I think the New York AG
24 office was joined by somebody else with a similar perspective.
25 The New York AG office thought the releases were
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overly broad. I think it was Ms. Leary, Maureen Leary, but it
doesn't matter. But instead of bringing down the whole
confirmation and bringing down the whole case, she said we
support confirmation but massage your order to deal with this
issue.

That isn't my memory of what you did here and in fact
I had given you exactly what you thought you should get,
putting aside the fact that Buttita wasn't a future claimant,
and you still supported the stay. Now by the stay -- by the
time of the stay my order had given future claimants the
protection that they could legitimately expect and you were
still doing it. And that just gives me deja vu all over again,
compared to what I see from the hedge funds before me in case
after case. Where am I wrong-?

MR. REINSEL: Your Honor, Mr. Buttita's objective, and
really his sole objective here, was not to bring down the case.
It was not to bring down the sale but it was to make absolutely
clear that the rights of those claimants would be preserved and
that the injunction that would result from the sale would not
extend to those future claimants except through, essentially,
what we finally ended up doing here, which was at least through
a mechanism that mimicked, at best, 524 (g) of the Code.

I think, Your Honor, and another the Treasury, I
think, makes light of, what that contribution of having the

asbestos claimants stand up before the Court and say no, you
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1 can't hide behind the shield for the future claimants here.

2 That we didn't bring a substantial contribution to the case by
3 making ourselves heard at that point was belied by how the rest
4 of the facts of the case ran out. Right after the sale, the

5 sale order became final, Mr. Buttita's state court counsel, Mr.
6 Cooney, was immediately -- almost immediately approached to

7 chair a subcommittee of the unsecured creditors committee in

8 order to provide for the proper treatment of both present and

9 future claimants as the case developed.

10 Ultimately that turned into the appointment, as the

11 Court's aware, of a separate asbestos committee. That resulted
12 in the negotiation of an acceptable treatment for both present
13 and future claims through this case, a procedure that, number
14 one, resulted in a consensual estimation of the amount of the
15 claims, the development of procedures to treat both present and
16 future claims and through procedures that effectively mimic

17 section 524 (g) of the Code and as a result obtained the

18 overwhelming support of all of the asbestos creditors in the

19 case.
20 Now Judge, perhaps joining in a stay motion was not
21 the wisest thing that Mr. Buttita could have done, but that was
22 not his primary thrust here. That was obviously a motion that
23 was brought by another party and things were still in a state
24 of flux at that time. But what Mr. Buttita did was to ensure
25 the proper treatment of a larger class of creditors, creditors
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1 which we and you acknowledge he was not even truly a member of
2 the future claimants, to provide for their -- that ultimately
3 provided for their full and equitable treatment in the case.
4 We think, Judge, that those nece -- without those
5 necessary first steps, none of that would have happened. None
6 of it could have happened because those rights would have been
7 foreclosed. And we believe, Your Honor, that that ought to
8 resolve in -- what is, certainly in the scope of this case, a
9 very modest request for substantial contribution. Which I
10 note, number one, my firm substantially discounted fees to Mr.
11 Buttita before we came in here, by at least a third. That
12 we've turned off our fees I think a month and a half into the
13 case, about a week or so after the sale order was entered.
14 No request has been made by Mr. Buttita's personal
15 counsel, Mr. Cooney or his firm, Cooney & Conway, for what
16 ended up being hundreds and hundreds of hours devoted to his
17 representation.
18 And the only other objection that we're aware of is
19 one from the fee examiner which, although we questioned the fee
20 examiner's authority given the scope of the Court's order to
21 deal with non-estate professionals, we reached a resolution
22 with the fee examiner to, again, reduce the amount of fees that
23 we were requesting such that in our -- as modified after taking
24 into account the fee examiner's objection. We're looking for a
25 total of --
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1 THE COURT: Was it 172,000 bucks or is that before you
2 had your dialogue with Mr. --
3 MR. REINSEL: Yeah. We are now, Judge, the actual
4 request should be, as agreed, $154,692.62 in fees, $13,973.29
5 in expenses for a total request of $168,665.91.
6 THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Jones, may I get your
7 perspective, please?
8 MR. JONES: Thank you, Your Honor. David Jones from
9 the U.S. Attorney's Office, Southern District of New York for
10 the United States and specifically Treasury as DIP lender.
11 Your Honor, quite simply I don't see how this
12 application constitutes -- is for work that constitutes
13 substantial contributions to the estate. As the Court noted,
14 the application period is solely for June and July 2009, at
15 which point Mr. Buttita was actively opposing the sale
16 application that was the indispensable prerequisite for any
17 kind of recovery being achieved in this case.
18 And as the Court also noted, his objections were not
19 phrased as limited objections or requests to modify, in some
20 limited respect, the relief being provided but rather they were
21 outright -- phrased as outright objections and even, at docket
22 number 3013, Mr. Buttita joined a request for an expedited
23 appeal and/or stay from the Court's sale order.
24 None of that -- and as the Court also referenced,
25 there was undisputed testimony at the sale hearing that the

VERITEXT REPORTING COMPANY
212-267-6868 WwWW.veritext.com 516-608-2400



09-50026-reg Doc 11025 Filed 09/28/%515@@@;%? AT ERE @HRPBR N Qocument  Pg 62 of
104

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 62

sale had to go through promptly and on the terms that had been
negotiated as commercially reasonable and calculated to make
New GM to succeed for this case to have any prospect of
success.

So for all of these reasons, the work for which
compensation is being sought simply did not make any material
contribution to the estate.

There's a bit of a disconnect because the -- Mr.
Buttita talks about subsequent stages of the case, beginning in
2010, when the asbestos constituency, including his counsel,
pursued remedies against the debtors' estate. Again, as he
characterized it, sort of, roughly, trying to replicate the
524 (g) connection -- protections and procedures available in
plans of reorganization. That is exactly what the government
said and the proponents of the sale said was their property
remedy even back at the time of the sale hearing.

What we said was, 524 (g) protections are not available
and are irrelevant for purposes of this sale. What needs to
occur -- that is a remedy and a requirement that exists in the
context of plan development in confirmation and that process
will be gone through, in this case, at a subsequent stage.

So where that process was pursued and brought into
being in 2010 was the appropriate stage and was consistent with
the government and the sale proponents' position at every step

in this case, yet was opposed by Buttita at the outset.
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1 I'll also note that the preservation through the

2 language saying the effect of the injunction was solely to the
3 extent constitutionally permitted, if anything would permit

4 future claimants whose claims haven't ripened yet, so they're

5 not creditors, to potentially pursue some relief from New GM,

6 not from the estate. And so, again, to the extent that right

7 was preserved, which is not defined through the sale order as I
8 understand it, that is not, again, a substantial contribution

9 to the processes of this case in any respect or the resolution
10 of affairs as to the debtor. It simply is a preservation of a
11 right of a particular, as of now undefined future interest

12 group, future subset of the population who may, in the future,
13 want to proceed against New GM. Again, that is -- I don't

14 understand and I haven't seen any authority suggesting that

15 that could be compensable as a substantial contribution to the
16 functioning of this case.

17 Your Honor, if the Court has no further questions,

18 I'll just rest on our papers at this point.

19 THE COURT: All right.
20 MR. JONES: Thank you.
21 THE COURT: Mr. Reinsel, reply?
22 MR. REINSEL: Your Honor, just back to that last point
23 about the -- the Court's modification of the order simply
24 subsuming the existing law. What that would have done, I think
25 in the absence, Judge, of your opinion and the modifications to
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the order that were ultimately entered was expressly intended
to, at minimum, create ambiguity and at worst to throw up an
absolute wall to further claimants.

An approach which would have cost, I think, the estate
itself as well as New GM significant dollars in litigation
outside of this court in subsequent matters to determine that
those rights did still exist, despite the expressed wording
that was sought in the sale order. That was a significant
success, I think, by Mr. Buttita to set the stage for what then
happened in the case.

Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Jones, is there really a
need for you to rise at this point? All right.

MR. JONES: Only to grab my Redweld at the corner. I
have nothing to say, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You can grab your Redweld and then I want
everybody to sit in place.

(Pause)

THE COURT: In this contested matter in the Chapter 11
case of Motors Liquidation Company, formerly known as General
Motors and its affiliates, Mark Buttita seeks an award of, on a
substantial contribution basis, for services performed wholly
or principally by the law firm of Caplin & Drysdale during the
months of June and July of 2009.

The United States Government, on behalf of the U.S.
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1 Treasury and ultimately the taxpayers, objects. The
2 government's objections is sustained and the motion for payment
3 of an administrative expense is denied.
4 The facts are not in material dispute. 1In fact, I
5 don't think they're in dispute in any regard. Buttita, through
6 counsel, opposed a motion, that being the 363 sale motion,
7 urged by the debtors with the support of the United States
8 Treasury, the Canadian government, the UAW and other parties,
9 including the creditors' committee as a whole, that was
10 essential to the company's survival.
11 He did so to advance his private agenda. He even
12 supported a motion for a stay after I had found as a fact,
13 consistent with affidavits that were available before the
14 evidentiary hearing on the 363 sale, as to how critically
15 important to the needs of GM stakeholders the 363 sale was. He
16 supported the motion for the stay even after I had put the
17 language in the 363 order, which provides such an important,
18 alleged contribution to the estate, in other words, the
19 objection to continuing with the sale continued after I had
20 given Buttita what he claimed he was after.
21 Now Buttita is asking the other creditors and the U.S.
22 taxpayers to pay for that. That is not a contribution, much
23 less a substantial contribution.
24 Too often, in cases on my watch, in major Chapter 11
25 cases, too often over the eleven years that I've been sitting

VERITEXT REPORTING COMPANY
212-267-6868 WwWW.veritext.com 516-608-2400



09-50026-reg Doc 11025 Filed 09/28/%515@@@;%? AT ERE @HRPBR N Qocument Pg 66 of
104

Page 66
1 up here, I've seen stakeholders taking actions that would bring
2 the downfall of the entire estate to advance private agendas,
3 to boost individual recoveries. My concerns in this regard are
4 not new. In two published decisions, each in the Adelphia
5 case, 336 B.R. 610 and then again at 441 B.R. 6, I addressed
6 tactics of this type. I said "The bringing of motions like
7 these is not unethical or sanctionable but neither should it be
8 encouraged or rewarded. Motions that would bring an
9 intolerable consequences for an estate should not be used as a
10 tactic to augment a particular constituency's recovery."
11 To be sure, what I saw in the summer of 2009 is not
12 egregious as the actions that I dealt with in Adelphia. And at
13 the risk of stating the obvious, in one case it was destructive
14 motions that were brought on and here it was an opposition to a
15 motion that was widely acknowledged to be essential to the
16 company's survival.
17 It may have been entirely reasonable, and certainly
18 was not sanctionable from the perspective of the party that
19 wanted to advance its private agenda, but as I said it cannot,
20 in any fair meaning of the term, be regarded as either a
21 contribution or a substantial contribution. In fact, it
22 necessitated efforts by other stakeholders in the case who, by
23 the way, had more at stake than the objectors did, to expend
24 funds to deal with the objection.
25 Now Buttita properly observes that there was an
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1 element of the motion that initially required fixing, which was
2 early language in the proposed sale order which would have

3 inappropriately dealt with future claims, claims in that

4 context being used loosely because, of course, they weren't 101
5 claims and in considering this application I pause to think

6 about whether I should therefore allow some kind of partial

7 award to take into account that feature.

8 But after thinking about it I rejected that notion and
9 I did so for two reasons. The first is that as the New York

10 AG's office pointed out, or exemplified perhaps better than

11 pointed out, when it objected to confirmation you can raise

12 concerns of that sort without threatening to bring down a whole
13 Chapter 11 case. There, at the risk of stating the obvious and
14 reminding people of things that I think are known to everybody
15 in this room, the New York AG filed a limited objection, said
16 we support everything but we want you to massage your

17 confirmation order to narrow it in the following respect. And
18 after hearing the New York AG's counsel, I was persuaded that
19 she was right. We massaged the confirmation order and we
20 didn't risk recoveries for thousands of affected people much
21 less, again, the taxpayers of the United States. It was wholly
22 unnecessary to raise the objection in the form it did -- it was
23 raised and it is particularly troublesome that the applicant
24 now seeks to be paid for it.
25 Secondly, as I discussed in colloquy in argument on
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1 the motion, assuming, though it's obviously contrary to what I
2 just said, that any legitimate objective might have been

3 achieved by the filing of the original objection. Its stated
4 purpose, I'm not sure if it was the real purpose but I'll

5 assume arguendo that it was, was fully achieved when I issued
6 the 363 order. I put in the exact language which most, maybe
7 not everybody but most, concede was necessary to deal with the
8 constitutional issue. So that language was sitting in the 363
9 order when it then went up on appeal and when it then was the
10 subject of the stay application. And even though the

11 ostensible purpose for the objection had been fully satisfied,
12 there was still support for the stay application. At the very
13 least you have to wonder where is the benefit to the estate in
14 that regard, assuming, though the contrary inference screams
15 out for consideration, that the constitutional issue wasn't

16 what it was about at all, but that there was a higher agenda.
17 Again, such conduct may not be unethical or

18 sanctionable but neither should it be encouraged or rewarded
19 and I am not going to pay for it in the form of a substantial
20 contribution award. I shouldn't say I am not going to pay for
21 it, I'm not the one who would be paying for it either way, it
22 would be an amalgam of 0ld GM, Treasury and ultimately the
23 taxpayers of the United States.
24 If there is anything I would like to convey here,
25 aside from a narrow ruling on the merits, it's that there are
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1 ways to accomplish legitimate needs and concerns without
2 bringing down a whole Chapter 11 case. And while doing so may
3 not always be inappropriate, the notion that it should be a
4 substantial contribution to a Chapter 11 case is offensive to
5 at least me as a bankruptcy judge.
6 Mr. Jones, you're to settle an order in accordance
7 with the foregoing.
8 MR. JONES: Very well, Your Honor.
9 MR. REINSEL: Very good, Your Honor.
10 THE COURT: Do we have any further business? Mr.
11 Smolinsky, are you coming up?
12 MR. SMOLINSKY: Yes, Your Honor.
13 THE COURT: Sure.
14 MR. JONES: Your Honor, that's my last matter today,
15 can I be excused?
16 THE COURT: Yes, sir.
17 MR. JONES: Thank you.
18 MR. SMOLINSKY: Your Honor, Joe Smolinsky on behalf of
19 the debtors and the Motors Liquidation Company trust. We're
20 going to move to the claims matters on the calendar today, they
21 appear on page 22 of the agenda.
22 The first matter is omnibus objection number 234,
23 that's pension benefit claims of former salaried and hourly
24 employees. We've had one response; as usual we will adjourn
25 with respect to that response and seek an order on default with
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1 respect to the remainder.

2 THE COURT: Certainly.

3 MR. SMOLINSKY: Thank you, Your Honor. 235th omnibus
4 objections, that's pension claims, welfare, benefit claims of

5 former salaried executive or hourly employees. One response,

6 Charles Powell, we will adjourn to October 28th and seek an

7 order with respect to the remainder

8 236th omnibus objections to claim, splinter union

9 employee claims, we have received no responses and we'd like an
10 order approving that objection.

11 THE COURT: Yes.

12 MR. SMOLINSKY: Number 237, that is claims relating to
13 former UAW workers, although there was no formal response there
14 was one informal, Beverly Carrie, and we had one walk-in today,
15 Arocelia Roman (ph.), and Your Honor's chambers was kind enough
16 to find a translator for us. We spoke to Ms. Roman and it

17 appears to be an issue with her union rep as opposed to with

18 the debtors' request for relief. We're going to adjourn that
19 matter to October 28th just so we make sure that we facilitate
20 a conversation between her and the union.
21 THE COURT: Was she a splinter union member or a UAW?
22 MR. SMOLINSKY: UAW, Your Honor.
23 THE COURT: So she'll talk to the UAW about that?
24 MR. SMOLINSKY: Yeah. She had some problems with some
25 prescriptions filled, is my understanding and we're just going
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1 to adjourn it and make sure that she gets an opportunity to

2 discuss the matter with the union.

3 MR. SMOLINSKY: The next matter, 238th omnibus

4 objections to claim -- that's welfare benefit claims -- of

5 retired and former salaried and executive employees. We

6 received no response and we'd like to go forward with an order.
7 THE COURT: Yes, sir; granted.

8 MR. SMOLINSKY: The same holds true for the 239th

9 omnibus objection, the 240th and the 241lst; we've received no
10 responses.

11 With respect to the 242nd omnibus objection to claims,
12 that's contingent co-liability claims, we've received a total
13 of three responses from Seneca Insurance Company, State Farm
14 Fire and Casualty, and Centerpoint Associates, and we wish to
15 adjourn relief with respect to those claims until October 28th
16 and go forward with the remainder.

17 THE COURT: Help me on that, Mr. Smolinsky; usually

18 those issues come up with PRPs and folks who are like co-

19 defendants, how are the insurance companies involved? They
20 were insurers for PRPs or -- and it shelled out checks and then
21 were looking to get subrogated to what they had paid or what?
22 MR. SMOLINSKY: 1It's not only in the environmental
23 space, it also is any insurance company that may have been
24 insuring the debtors and have a contingent subrogation claim
25 back and has filed a claim to protect against paying out on the
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policy.

THE COURT: Okay. So you're in substance, continuing
the dialog with them, and then if you need to disagree you'll
be back later?

MR. SMOLINSKY: Yes, and in almost all circumstances
we've worked it out, so I expect the same will be true in this
case.

That brings us to the 243rd objection and I'd like to
turn the podium over to Ms. Greer.

THE COURT: Sure; come on up, please?

MS. GREER: Good afternoon, Your Honor, Stefanie Greer
from Dickstein Shapiro also on behalf of the Motors Liquidation
Trust --

THE COURT: Good morning Ms. Greer, could I impose on
you to pull that microphone closer to you, please?

MS. GREER: Sure. Is that better?

THE COURT: Yes.

MS. GREER: Okay. All right, we have four objections
to claims. Inconsistent with Mr. Smolinsky's approach, what
we'd like to do is go forward only with those for which we did
not receive a response and adjourn the remainder.

So we have the 243rd omnibus objection to -- which was
late file claims -- we had seven, which we have either received
informal or formal responses and will adjourn those and go

forward with the rest.
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1 On the 244th omnibus objection, also on the basis that
2 the claims were late filed, we received seven responses, which
3 we will adjourn. We also decided to withdraw one of those

4 objections and we are going forward with the thirty-one

5 remaining objections.

6 The 245th omnibus objection is also on the basis of

7 late file claims; these were all claims filed after the

8 effective date. Sixteen of those are being adjourned and

9 twenty-eight are going forward today.

10 Finally, Your Honor, we have the 246th omnibus

11 objection; these are claims for which the debtors do not have
12 liability on the very bases as described in the objection. Two
13 of those have been adjourned and sixteen are going forward.

14 Does Your Honor have any questions on the objections?
15 THE COURT: No, I really don't; to the extent that

16 you're pursuing the objections today, your objections are

17 sustained and those that have been kicked will be continued.

18 If I didn't sufficiently interrupt Mr. Smolinsky

19 saying the same ruling on all of his, the decision's the same.
20 So if I didn't say so explicitly, on those that he raised,
21 those that are actually being objected to today, and are being
22 pursued today, the objections on his side are sustained as well
23 and the remainder will be kicked and rescheduled.
24 MS. GREER: Thank you, Your Honor. Shall I approach
25 with orders or --
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1 THE COURT: Go across the hall to my courtroom deputy,
2 Ms. Blum, and take care of the paperwork.
3 MS. GREER: Thank you, Your Honor.
4 THE COURT: Thank you. To what extent do we have
5 further business before we continue this afternoon with
6 Spencer?
7 Mr. Smolinsky?
8 MR. SMOLINSKY: As Your Honor noted we have the 2
9 o'clock hearing with Mr. Spencer and that concludes today's
10 calendar.
11 THE COURT: Okay, then we're adjourned until 2
12 o'clock.
13 MR. SMOLINSKY: Thank you.
14 (Recess from 12:19 p.m. until 2:11 p.m.)
15 THE COURT: Good afternoon, have seats please. I
16 apologize for keeping you all waiting; there was something that
17 simply had to be done before I could return to the bench.
18 All right, we have the Barry Henry Spencer matter.
19 And the motions -- it needs direction with respect to Mr.
20 Spencer's desire to not be bound by the settlement agreement he
21 signed and GM's desire that I put some controls on Mr.
22 Spencer's filings.
23 I have questions of both sides, but principally of
24 you, Mr. Spencer.
25 MR. SPENCER: Yes, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: I've read your papers; there's a lot of
rhetoric in them. I cannot see the relevance of your
contentions that you're a sovereign citizen and the various
references to inalienable rights and things of that sort. I
did notice the absence of any allegations of what, if anything,
GM told you that was fraudulent. And the job of a guy like me
is to get behind the rhetoric and get to the underlying facts
and it seemed to me that a lot of what you said kind of went
overboard, if you will forgive me. By the same token, in
essence what GM is asking for is a Martin-Trigona order, that
being named after the famous case of Martin-Trigona, where a
guy with pleading after pleading was plainly abusing the
system. And I know we have the power to grant them and at some
point we do when enough is enough. But I want GM to tell me
whether it thinks we've gone over that point now; we may have.
But I want help on that.

Who -- well, Mr. Spencer, you're on the phone, am I
correct?

MR. SPENCER: Yes, sir. I'm sorry I couldn't be
there. I tried; it was not in my control.

THE COURT: I'm having trouble hearing you, Mr.
Spencer.

MR. SPENCER: I said I tried to get there as much as T
could, but it just wasn't in my control.

THE COURT: No, that's all right, you can appear by
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telephone. And who is going to be arguing on behalf of GM?

MR. SMOLINSKY: I will, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay, Mr. Smolinsky. All right, I'll hear
first from you, Mr. Spencer.

MR. SPENCER: Your Honor, basically, I mean, I'm not
trying to just prolong this lawsuit. I think this case has
gone on since the 11th of 2009 --

THE COURT: Pause, please, Mr. Spencer. Are you using
a cell phone or something that would make it hard to understand
you?

MR. SPENCER: No, it's a regular landline, I believe.

THE COURT: Okay, the second time you spoke, when you
just made reference to the landline you sounded a little
clearer.

MR. SPENCER: Okay.

THE COURT: Thank you, continue, please.

MR. SPENCER: All right. Well, the case goes back to
2003, set in Massachusetts when I filed the actual complaint.
In 2005, when I actually docketed, we went to court; I actually
moved for a lien against GM and asked for discovery. And I
asked if they examined the vehicle because the vehicle would
keep shutting off on me and my fiancee numerous times, and we
almost crashed. You know, and --

THE COURT: Let me interrupt you, Mr. Spencer,

because --
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MR. SPENCER: Okay.

THE COURT: -- I understand you're upset with the car.

MR. SPENCER: Right.

THE COURT: And --

MR. SPENCER: This is --

THE COURT: No, you can't interrupt me, Mr. Spencer'
you've got to let me speak. But the legal issue is whether you
can walk from the settlement agreement you entered into.

MR. SPENCER: Okay.

THE COURT: And the second legal issue is whether T
should be granting GM -- 0l1ld GM -- relief on its cross-motion,
where they're saying I got to put a halt to the stuff you've
been doing, putting a lien on GM's assets being a classic
example of that, because you may or may not have a claim
against GM, but you can't keep throwing liens on people.

MR. SPENCER: Your Honor, I didn't put a lien on
anyone. The only lien I have is the actual paperwork I filed
in this court, sir, and actually, as a claimant in this action.

THE COURT: And you're asserting a lien in this court?

MR. SPENCER: No, I actually -- I filed only paperwork
in this court because the stay had stopped me from filing any
paperwork in the Massachusetts court, which I had to read the
law and figure that out. And the only thing that I'm arguing
is that GM, at the time when I took the -- when I was going to

take the settlement, Your Honor, there was two three-family
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1 houses in Massachusetts in a very good area which I was trying
2 to get on the foreclosure, which I was actually explaining to
3 Mr. Smolinsky that we're going around 100,000 a piece, so I
4 really wanted to just end all this, you know, because my life's
5 been in shambles for long enough and running back and forth to
6 court over money isn't worth it. You know, so I was going to
7 buy the houses and fix them up and sell them as condos. I
8 mean, I wasn't trying to -- to have this go on and on and on,
9 you know, even with me and Mr. Smolinsky, over the ADR, we
10 argued and he wrote down a settlement floor of 200,000; I told
11 him 500,000. You know what I'm saying? Because I feel that's
12 only fair. I mean, I had suffered 27,000 dollars' worth of
13 medical bills; fractured sternum, fractured pelvis. You know,
14 I still carry cups in my hand and drop them because my hand
15 can't close all the way because I was holding the steering
16 wheel. My knees are shot, you know. I have a hernia from when
17 I was working at the shift (ph.) that was compounded, which
18 they wanted to operate on me, you know? But it hurt more so
19 they decided not to see if it would work again. You know, I
20 don't think anything I ask is unreasonable. I'm not trying to
21 sit up here and keep filing and filing. And I told Mr.
22 Smolinsky, you know, I want to end all this.
23 THE COURT: Forgive me, Mr. Spencer, I did not want to
24 interrupt you.
25 MR. SPENCER: Oh, I'm sorry.
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1 THE COURT: But at the outset I asked you to focus on
2 the legal issue, which is how you assert that GM defrauded you
3 when they agreed to give you a 200,000 dollar unsecured claim.
4 MR. SPENCER: Okay, well I --
5 THE COURT: And my other question, based on liens, was
6 based on page 5 of 28, where one of the elements of your claim
7 is billing costs associated with levies and liens upon
8 violation shall be, and then you list a whole bunch of things
9 that you're claiming.
10 MR. SPENCER: Okay. Well, I just made a billing
11 assessment, what I was getting to, in actual fact, is because
12 when I was taking the lien -- the actual settlement offer --
13 they didn't tell me that the warrants I'll have to receive
14 taxes on them, I would have to sell them. And then when I went
15 to -- asked about them, they told me I can't receive it then.
16 And then, when I found out I could receive it, they told me I
17 could only receive 25,000, to 48- to 50,000 for some of these
18 companies that actually was offering to buy the stocks at the
19 time which were no good me or my family. So I believe that was
20 fraud and deceit at the time. So that's why within twenty days
21 later -- before twenty days -- I moved to rescind and to be --
22 pull out the settlement offer. I even wrote them, I even
23 called them; they ignored my phone calls, they ignored my text,
24 they ignored everything. I tried as an honest man, trying to
25 resolve this debt, you know? I'm not trying to prolong this; I
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1 mean for all I care, you know, I just want it done.

2 But I think that's very unreasonable because at the

3 time, if I was able to get what I needed, I could have had two
4 three-family houses in Massachusetts, which would have been

5 worth over a million dollars, and there was no reason to go

6 arguing with GM anymore; over anything. But now that can't

7 happen because of what was told to me at the time. And even

8 now, they still want me to go with the trust administrator, to
9 make a count, what has to be sold, and I still receive taxes
10 taken out, I still receive -- but this is for bodily injury.
11 THE COURT: Mr. Spencer, respectfully, --

12 MR. SPENCER: Are you saying I can't do that --

13 THE COURT: -- I ask you one more time to answer the
14 question I asked at the beginning.

15 MR. SPENCER: Well --

16 THE COURT: This is your last chance, sir.

17 MR. SPENCER: Okay, sir, I thought I did. But if you
18 believe that I haven't then I guess I must sit with what you
19 have given me or what you're going to rule, sir. Because it
20 seems like you're not hearing anything I've said. But
21 thanks --
22 THE COURT: Well, I read all of your stuff, Mr.
23 Spencer, and when I read all of your stuff, I was looking for
24 the one thing that I need to find, which is what you say that
25 GM said to you that was false, when you agreed to take a
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1 settlement agreement, which would give you a 200,000 unsecured
2 claim, instead of the hundreds of millions of dollars that you
3 had claimed in your proofs of claim. And that's the legal
4 issue that I've got to deal with from your side, although I've
5 got to tell you, that the more we have this discussion, the
6 more I'm wondering whether I've got to grant GM a Martin-
7 Trigona order as well.
8 MR. SPENCER: Well, Your Honor, I guess you have to do
9 what you want to do.
10 THE COURT: Okay, fair enough.
11 Mr. Smolinsky, do you want to respond?
12 MR. SMOLINSKY: Yes Your Honor, thank you.
13 I think it might be helpful to give Your Honor a bit
14 of background because this is not a settlement that was reached
15 on one phone call where it was easy to forget what the
16 distributions would look like and what an unsecured claim
17 against General Motors Corporation would provide to Mr.
18 Spencer.
19 Mr. Spencer filed two unsecured proofs of claim, as
20 Your Honor is aware -- two duplicate claims, each in the amount
21 of 682 million dollars; 125 million of that was secured and
22 12.5 million of it was filed as priority. This claim,
23 immediately when it was filed, came on our radar screen and was
24 flagged for immediate review. The reason why these claims were
25 important to deal with quickly, is that it alleges personal
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injury and as Your Honor is aware, those matters cannot be
estimated or liquidated by Your Honor, so we would have had to
slog through a state court proceeding in some other
jurisdiction.

Number two, Mr. Spencer, at the time, was incarcerated
and we were concerned about the ability to litigate effectively
with him within the confines of the time we had from the filing
of the case to confirmation because obviously a claim of this
size would make a dramatic impact on distributions to creditors
and, in fact, 250 million dollars of secured claims could have
become an obstacle to confirmation.

Third, Your Honor, Mr. Spencer is not a stranger to
litigation. We had identified twenty-nine separate lawsuits
where Mr. Spencer was a party; some of those are related to one
another, but if you look at the totality of the proceedings,
there are a fair amount of proceedings on different grounds.

So we spent a lot of time talking about the Spencer
claim and how we were going to resolve it. We did something in
this matter that we have not done with any other individual
claim. In order to attract Mr. Spencer to cap his claim, we
agreed to provide a floor of 200,000 in the settlement amount;
so we said if you agree to cap your claim at nine million
dollars, we would agree to make a settlement offer of a general
unsecured claim of 200,000 dollars. Even if, at the end of the

day, mediation was unsuccessful, we ended up litigating in
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another court and the court finding that Mr. Spencer was not
entitled to any claim, our agreement was that we would offer
him a 200,000-dollar settlement in exchange for an agreement
not to appeal. And of course if he appeals the decision then
all bets would be off and we could seek a judgment in favor of
MLC or GM.

These conversations initially took place with
Sylvester, who is Mr. Spencer's brother. Mr. Sylvester Spencer
was identified on the proof of claim as the party who would
speak. I had numerous conversations with Sylvester Spencer; I
explained to him the court claims process, with the stock and
warrants that came out of the sale. At some point when it got
into brass tacks, I asked Sylvester Spencer whether I could get
a power of attorney from Barry Spencer so that I knew that he
was authorized to negotiate on his behalf. That power of
attorney was provided to me and then it was later retracted by
Barry Spencer.

THE COURT: After the settlement agreement was entered
into?

MR. SMOLINSKY: No, this was prior to -- this is when
we were negotiating the bracket. Brackets are used in
mediation often to come closer to a resolution by fixing a
floor and a ceiling and that's what we tried to do with Mr.
Spencer, to give him real benefit for agreeing to cap his claim

to something that would be more manageable for us to confirm a
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1 plan, were we not able to settle it in mediation.

2 The 200,000 dollars, we believe was very rich for the

3 claim. Mr. Spencer had also sued Expressway Toyota, which was

4 the dealer in connection with the same car accident that was

5 involved in this claim. And in that case the claim was

6 dismissed and the appellate court ruled that --

7 MR. SPENCER: Let me interrupt for a minute.

8 THE COURT: Go on, Mr. Smolinsky.

9 MR. SMOLINSKY: -- the appellate court ruled that that
10 claim was not viable because Mr. Spencer couldn't demonstrate a
11 defect to the car and Tamika Scott, who is the owner of the
12 car, sold the car -- or disposed of the car -- so that no
13 expert testimony was possible regarding the status of the

14 vehicle and the alleged defect. So already we had a court

15 decision which ruled against Mr. Spencer in terms of product
16 liability; nevertheless, we thought that the 200,000-dollar
17 offer was a good deal for the estate because it removed a

18 confirmation obstacle. We then started negotiating with Mr.
19 Spencer, I had conversations with Mr. Spencer, I explained to
20 him the claims process.

21 THE COURT: This is after he yanked the power of

22 attorney?

23 MR. SMOLINSKY: Yes, Your Honor.

24 I explained to him the secondary market and how claims
25 were trading, the fact that claims were trading from between

VERITEXT REPORTING COMPANY
212-267-6868 WwWW.veritext.com 516-608-2400



09-50026-reg Doc 11025 Filed 09/28/%515@@@;%? AT ERE @HRPBR N Qocument  Pg 85 of
104

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 85

twenty-five and thirty cents on the dollar; he asked me -- I
told him that there was actually a list of traders that was
available to him if he wanted to sell his claim immediately,
which would have avoided the need to sell warrants and stock.
And in fact the e-mail correspondence back and forth
demonstrates the fact that around the same time as the
settlement agreement, we had sent him that list of claims
traders. So it's not true that he was unaware that the -- that
he would not be receiving 200,000 dollars in cash after the
settlement.

After many rounds of negotiation, we told Mr. Spencer
that we could simply not go above 200,000 dollars and he
ultimately decided to take the 200,000-dollar general unsecured
claim, signed a settlement agreement and then a month later he
started -- or three weeks later -- he started filing with the
bankruptcy court various pleadings, seeking to invalidate the
settlement, based on "subtle threats, coercion and
intimidation". He purported to place maritime liens on
fictitious vessels in the name of various individuals including
myself, filed promissory note surety bonds, warrants of arrest,
UCC-1 financial statements.

Now, I agree with Mr. Spencer, we don't have any
indication that he filed those documents in the Secretary of
State -- in Massachusetts or the Office of Homeland Security,

which is where maritime liens are filed; it is possible that he
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1 only filed those pleadings in the bankruptcy court, are those

2 documents. But they did give us reason for concern.

3 So, of course because of this ongoing repudiation of

4 the agreement where he sought not only to invalidate the

5 agreement but also to go far beyond the nine million dollars

6 and started asserting claims well above the cap, we were not in
7 a position to make distributions to him on the effective date

8 of the plan. We were very focused on confirmation and we

9 decided that we'd have to deal with Mr. Spencer after

10 confirmation. It's unfortunate because as Your Honor may be

11 aware, the stock has dropped in value, and if Mr. Spencer had
12 taken his settlement agreement -- the stock price of course

13 could come back -- but it certainly is worth a little bit less
14 than when we went effective.

15 Your Honor, I think the settlement agreement

16 constitutes a valid agreement. I don't think there's any

17 indication that entering into it was improper. If there was

18 any coercion, it was coercion against us for having to allow

19 the claim for 200,000 dollars, where if this was a straight
20 claim, we probably would have taken it to try to get a judgment
21 in favor of MIC.
22 THE COURT: Pause, please, Mr. Smolinsky.
23 What was the gross amount of the original claims? 600
24 million?
25 MR. SMOLINSKY: 682 million.
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1 THE COURT: Each?
2 MR. SMOLINSKY: Each. So it was a 1.4 billion dollar
3 claim. There was a question as to whether the twelve and half
4 million priority claim should have been tacked on to that,
5 which would have made it 794 million -- add another twelve and
6 half million. But it was obviously substantial and it was a
7 big obstacle to the case.
8 So Your Honor, our papers cite New York law for the
9 proposition that settlement agreements are to be favored and
10 not to be upset unless there is a reason to -- cause to --
11 invalidate a contract; change of heart doesn't matter. I think
12 we, you know, we had very cordial conversations with Mr.
13 Spencer, I think we negotiated at arm's length, we certainly
14 negotiated in good faith. We reached a resolution, and I don't
15 know why the change of heart, but we're here to seek
16 enforcement of the contract so we can make our distributions to
17 Mr. Spencer as well as to enjoin end-runs from the plan by
18 virtue of taking further actions that would act to do an end-
19 run around the plan treatment.
20 Thank you, Your Honor.
21 THE COURT: Now -- pause. Before -- now shift from
22 why he should live with the settlement agreement to the request
23 for a Martin-Trigona order. Frankly that's the only
24 controversial aspect of this matter.
25 MR. SMOLINSKY: A Martin-Trigona order is an order
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1 that provides that Mr. Spencer can't file any papers in the

2 bankruptcy court without first seeking your leave.

3 THE COURT: Right.

4 MR. SMOLINSKY: Whether it goes so far as to a blanket

5 order, what we're trying to avoid are actions taken against

6 individual officers and directors; Carrianne Basler, who is in
7 the courtroom today, has been the subject of those filings.

8 Again, perhaps filings only in the bankruptcy court, but you

9 wonder what the next step will be. So we want to strike these
10 documents; frankly, we don't even know what these documents

11 mean. Some of these promissory notes -- I can't figure them

12 out -- but the estate has already not gotten the benefit of its
13 bargain. What it bargained for is a settlement for 200,000-

14 dollar claim and in exchange it would no longer spend any

15 estate resources on this claim.

16 MR. SPENCER: Your Honor --

17 MR. SMOLINSKY: As Your Honor can see, we've continued
18 to spend money and we don't want to spend any more money.
19 THE COURT: All right. Okay. Mr. Spencer, your turn
20 to reply.
21 MR. SPENCER: Well, Your Honor, I've been sitting here
22 listening, okay. If Mr. Smolinsky can -- and make it so that I
23 don't have to pay no taxes or liquidate any kind of stocks or
24 anything and they can send me the full 200,000, I'll accept it
25 and we can stop all this.
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1 THE COURT: Mr. Spencer, we're not here to play Let's
2 Make A Deal --

3 MR. SPENCER: Well --

4 THE COURT: -- nor -- nor to rewrite the Bankruptcy

5 Code, forgive me. The documents were unequivocal that the

6 company was giving you an unsecured claim and you're getting

7 treated the same on your unsecured claim that all of GM's other
8 general unsecured creditors are getting. If your legal

9 position is that the company has to give you a check for

10 200,000 dollars again with respect and I'm trying very hard to
11 keep my voice soft and to act with the demeanor everybody would
12 hope that I would act with, that is inconsistent with the law
13 and if you weren't pro se, if you were a lawyer making that

14 contention, I would have to sanction you.

15 MR. SPENCER: Oh.

16 THE COURT: Now, I won't sanction you because you're
17 not a lawyer but that kind of position doesn't stand up under
18 the law, sir.
19 MR. SPENCER: Question. It's a bodily injury, it's
20 not supposed to be taxed, that's inconsistent with the law but
21 I'm ending up in bankruptcy court and you're giving me a bunch
22 of stocks which is inconsistent with the law for a bodily
23 injury.
24 THE COURT: I am not expressing a view and I'm not
25 sure what -- whether GM is as to what your tax liability is.
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1 You will get what you're entitled to from this estate and you
2 can work that out with the IRS.
3 MR. SPENCER: Okay. But if it's inconsistent with the
4 law. That's the only qualms I've been having since day one.
5 THE COURT: Okay. Any further points in reply?
6 MR. SPENCER: Okay. Well, for you to put a blanket, T
7 believe, a blanket filing on anything I filed with the court I
8 believe it would deny me due process of the law especially if I
9 wanted to appeal any decision that came out of this court, you
10 know. So, I don't believe that I did anything that would harm
11 anyone intentionally and there isn't any record of me harming
12 anyone. They may put a person on notice, you know, of me
13 protecting and observing my rights. However, I know of times I
14 have an opportunity to voice my opinion under my First
15 Amendment right even in bankruptcy court. And, Your Honor, it
16 seems as though -- Your Honor, even though he's keeping his
17 voice very lightly, has been very biased by interrupting me.
18 And when I'm trying to explain why I felt as though that the
19 settlement offer was inconsistent, you know. And why I felt as
20 though there was deceit and dishonor in it. You know, I
21 haven't even got a chance to voice my opinion. And I'm sitting
22 here listening to Mr. Smolinsky go on about issues that I
23 wanted to object to but I couldn't because I'm on the phone.
24 And two, I didn't see Your Honor interrupt him as much
25 as he interrupted me. So, I think there's a little bias here,
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you know. So, Your Honor's going to do what Your Honor wants
to do, you know, because it seems like that's going to be done
anyone. So, and you say -- told me and I only ask for a copy
of the transcripts for this hearing here just in case.

This whole issue is me accepting the settlement offer
or not. So, when I said I accept it if you take away all the
things that are illegal about it, that I believe are illegal,
you still want to go on and tell right or wrong. I'm done.

THE COURT: The pauses you're hearing, Mr. Spencer,
are me waiting to hear any further points you with to make.

MR. SPENCER: I'm through. Thank you for your time.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SPENCER: An opportunity and for the time and be
heard.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SPENCER: And God bless you.

THE COURT: All right. Everybody sit in place and I
will rule.

(Pause)

THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, in this
contested matter in the jointly administered Chapter 11 cases
of Motors Liquidation Company and its affiliates, claimant
Barry Henry Spencer filed a verified declaration in the nature
of an affidavit of truth in commerce, rejection of the

settlement offer, and contract for waiver of tort. The debtors
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responded with a cross-motion seeking enforcement of a
settlement agreement with Mr. Spencer, the striking of
documents filed by Mr. Spencer, and an injunction against Mr.
Spencer often referred to as a Martin-Trigona order enjoining
him from further action against the debtors and individuals
associated with the debtors.

The debtors' motion to enforce the settlement agreement is
granted. The harm already having been done, the motion for the
striking of the documents that he filed is denied since it
would no longer do any good. And the injunctions requested
enjoining him from further action against the debtors and
debtor personnel or individuals associated with the debtor will
be granted in a modified form. And the following are my
findings of fact and bases for the exercise of my discretion in
this regard.

As facts I find that Mr. Spencer's claim arises out a pre-
petition personal injury caused by a car accident in 2003
involving the vehicle that had been recalled. Mr. Spencer
initially filed duplicate proofs of claim on November 30, 2009
each for 682 million dollars.

On July 13, 2010, Mr. Spencer agreed to expunge the
duplicate claim and to cap the surviving claim at nine million
dollars pursuant to the alternate dispute resolution
procedures. This same letter also set a claims settlement

floor of 200,000 dollars meaning in substance that the debtors
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agree to give him an allowed claim of 200,000 dollars
irrespective of the strength or weakness of Mr. Spencer's
claims.

The debtors then sent a notice to Mr. Spencer on July 19,
2010 indicating that they were submitting his claim to ADR,
that being the nickname for Alternative Dispute Resolution,
which included a proposed settlement offer for a general
unsecured claim nonpriority for 200,000 dollars.

MR. SPENCER: That's a --

THE COURT: Mr. Spencer, I'm dictating a decision.
I'll let you be heard after I do so but you can't interrupt me
now.

On July 24, 2010, Mr. Spencer rejected the settlement
offer and proposed a counteroffer of an allowed priority claim
of nine million dollars which if granted would put him ahead of
all of the other general unsecured creditors of Motors
Liquidation formerly known as 0ld GM.

The debtors and Mr. Spencer then engaged in negotiations
regarding his claim which included an explanation by the
debtors' counsel to Mr. Spencer of the proposed treatment of
allowed unsecured claims and anecdotal information on the
expected market value of the securities that would be
distributed on account of allowed claims under the plan. The
parties ultimately agreed to settle Mr. Spencer's claim for an

allowed general unsecured claim against Motors Liquidation
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1 Company for 200,000 dollars. The agreement signed by both
2 parties on September 1, 2010 also extinguished any other claims
3 Mr. Spencer might have against the debtors.
4 Since the time the agreement was signed, Mr. Spencer has
5 repeatedly made filings with this Court with the goal of
6 invalidating the agreement. Among other documents, Mr. Spencer
7 filed a motion to 1lift the automatic stay to allow enforcement
8 of a purported lien of 112.5 million dollars which I denied on
9 June 13, 2011.
10 He also filed a UCC-1 financing statement which is used to
11 get a security interest asserting that he is a secured creditor
12 in the amount of thirty-nine million dollars.
13 Mr. Spencer's pleadings, which I've reviewed more than
14 once, do no more than merely assert his dissatisfaction with
15 the terms of the settlement agreement particularly his concerns
16 as to how much he could get if he sold the stock and warrants
17 that he would get as an unsecured creditor, that being, of
18 course, the same consideration every other unsecured creditor
19 of GM is getting and his concerns as to the tax treatment
20 which, of course, is a matter not between him but between him
21 and the United States government, the IRS.
22 In particular, I've reviewed his pleadings to see what
23 exactly he was saying that GM said to him that was false that
24 could provide a basis for fraud and there are simply no
25 allegations of that character. His pleadings provide no basis
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for legal relief.

It's well settled that public policy favors settlements,
see, for example, In re WorldCom, Inc. Securities 388 F. Supp
2d, 319, 337 (SDNY 2005). The reduction of litigation and
related expenses is an important factor underlying this policy.
See for example Weinberger v. Kendrick 698 F. 2d 61, 73 (2d
Circuit 1982).

I, of course, do not hold that one could be bound to a
settlement if he had been defrauded in connection with that
settlement but the allegations of fraud that could give a
result -- results of that character have to be stated and
indeed they have to be stated with particularity and Mr.
Spencer has failed to comply with requirements of law in each
of those respects.

So, then we turn to the remaining matters before me those
being the debtors' requests for relief in the other direction.
I'm sympathetic to the debtors' desire to expunge the
allegations but the problem is that the cat is out of the bag
and the allegations have already been made. I could direct
their being expunged but it wouldn't do much good at this
point. I well understand the extent to which the debtors are
upset by the allegations which fairly read and even cutting
them some slack as the statements of a pro se debtor are
irresponsible and temperate and except for his allegations of

his underlying injury in the car wreck with which I have

VERITEXT REPORTING COMPANY

212-267-6868 WwWW.veritext.com 516-608-2400



09-50026-reg Doc 11025 Filed 09/28/%515@@@;%? AT ERE @HRPBR N Qocument  Pg 96 of
104

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 96

sympathy but which, of course, underlie the 200,000 dollar
allowed claim he is getting exceedingly inappropriate.

Worse than what he said about the parties is, frankly,
debtors and bankruptcy cases have a lot of bad things said
about them and their professionals do as well and their
management do as well and we kind of get used to that, are the
grossly inappropriate tactics in connection with his pursuing
this claim both in terms of asserting claims in such an
astronomical amount and making claims of lien and making claims
of priority treatment any one of which individually and
certainly in the aggregate would justify sanctions if they'd
ever been done by a lawyer. That gets us to the remaining
issue which is the Martin-Trigona order.

The Second Circuit has held that, and I'm quoting, "Courts
may resort to restrictive measures that except for normally
available procedures, litigants who have abused their
litigation opportunities." In re Martin-Trigona 9 F.3d 226,
228 (2d Circuit 1993).

I think the showing for Martin-Trigona order has largely
been made here. The debtors might legitimately criticize me
for not simply giving them a full and complete Martin-Trigona
order. I am hoping, however, that my telling Mr. Spencer now
that, a, what he gets is what every other creditor gets on this
unsecured claim, which is, obviously, quite sizeable, and also

that he can't keep doing this stuff with legal pleadings in
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1 this court or outside this court. And that it's got to come to
2 an end will be sufficient. So, I'm going to issue a hybrid of
3 a Martin-Trigona order.
4 I'm ruling that Mr. Spencer is still free to file matters
5 in this court but that nobody has to answer them or respond to
6 them until and unless I determine that they need to. I am,
7 however, ruling that anybody other than the debtors, like any
8 individuals he's trying to lay liens on or that he's trying to
9 sue not only that they needn't respond but that he can't attack
10 anybody other than the Motors Liquidation estate without
11 getting my approval first. I think that balances the needs to
12 be addressed aren't under a Martin-Trigona order with the
13 implementing a little of judicial restraint.
14 So, Mr. Spencer, you can't attack anybody except Motors
15 Liquidation without me giving you the green light before you do
16 so. And if you decide to attack Motors Liquidation more after
17 I've ruled today, you're not enjoined from doing that but I'm
18 ruling that nobody has to respond to that until and unless I
19 direct so.
20 Now, one clarification. I am not in any way impairing
21 your ability to appeal the order that I'm going to be entering
22 at the conclusion of this argument or shortly thereafter. You
23 do have the right to appeal and I take no position on that. 1In
24 due course, pretty soon, and you'll have to learn the rules on
25 appeals if you choose to appeal, you will need to submit a
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designation of record which will include the transcript of this
and by all means the transcript of this hearing will be part of
the record on that appeal. And Mr. Smolinsky, I'm going to
authorize and direct that if he makes a request for the
transcript you have one of your folks see that it's provided to
him as soon as one can be prepared if he chooses, of course, to
appeal.

Any review in court can read the exhibits that were put
before me, can follow the various pleadings that were filed by
Mr. Spencer, and can determine whether or not I got it right
and, of course, whether I acted in any appropriate way by
repeatedly asking Mr. Spencer to focus on the most important
issue which was the extent, if any, to which he was defrauded
when he agreed to the 200,000 dollar allowed general unsecured
claim.

Mr. Smolinsky, you are to settle an order consistent with
the rulings that I dictated today. The time to appeal that
order will run from the time of the entry of the order and not
from the date of this dictated decision.

Not by way of reargument, does anybody have any questions?
Hearing none, we're adjourned.

MR. SPENCER: Your Honor, I have a question.
THE COURT: Go ahead, Mr. Spencer.
MR. SPENCER: Question. To note that I'll be

accepting this offer now, thanks to the Court, is it based on
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the warrants? Is it still going to be the same settlement
amount?

THE COURT: Yes. I'm not allowed to give you legal
advice but that -- I understand the settlement is for an
unsecured claim, a general unsecured claim of 200,000 dollars.
Am I correct, Mr. Smolinsky?

MR. SMOLINSKY: That's correct, Your Honor. He'll
receive distributions on account of a 200,000-dollar general
unsecured claim that will be paid out in stock and warrants.
He'll receive the same number of shares and the same number of
warrants as anybody else on account of the same claim amount.
Although, obviously, the value of the stock and warrants go up
and down over time.

THE COURT: I understand that. And, in fact, I think
I expressly addressed that issue in the decision -- in the --
with respect to confirmation, didn't I?

MR. SPENCER: The attorney didn't touch it though
because I was wondering if it's -- the stock being down, if
it's at twenty-two, if it was at thirty-eight, the day that
they pay out it's down to twenty-two will there be more stock
or would it be the same amount if the stocks are at thirty-
eight?

THE COURT: It would be the exact same stock in terms
of numbers of shares and warrants that everybody else got on a

per claim basis. I addressed this exact issue in a published
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1 decision which you can find in the law books.

2 MR. SPENCER: What case?

3 THE COURT: 1It's called In re Motors Liquidation

4 Company. I don't know the citation to it but it dealt with a

5 position that had been raised, I think, by New York State with

6 respect to whether I had to put a market movement adjustment

7 mechanism in the plan and discussing the law in that area, I

8 concluded that no such measure was necessary. And that when

9 every creditor got the same number of stock shares and warrants
10 that was equal treatment. I'm paraphrasing the opinion but

11 that's the substance of it.

12 MR. SPENCER: Oh, they can claim that actually the

13 stock is worth thirty dollars and pay out thirty dollars when
14 they actually had twenty-two dollars, you mean?

15 THE COURT: Well, I think what they're going to do is
16 give you stocks and warrants and then you can hold it and see
17 if the market goes up or down --

18 MR. SPENCER: But is it --
19 THE COURT: -- well forgive me, Mr. Spencer. Please
20 don't interrupt me.
21 MR. SPENCER: I'm trying to figure it out, Your Honor.
22 THE COURT: Okay. And I'm repeating myself but what I
23 said was you will get a bundle of stock and warrants that
24 corresponds to having their claim of 200,000 bucks. Then, you
25 will have choices. You can hold it or you can sell it. You
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1 can hold it and maybe it will go up, on the other hand maybe it
2 will go down. Mr. Smolinsky didn't have to but he said in oral
3 argument that he told you of people who are willing to buy
4 claims and you can consider that. He's not giving you legal
5 advice on that and for sure I'm not giving you legal advice on
6 that. But what you are getting is an allowed claim for 200,000
7 dollars. And then that is what you're entitled to as a matter
8 of law along with the rights that go with an allowed claim of
9 200,000 dollars which is a bundle of stock and warrants that
10 measures up to a claim of that size.
11 MR. SPENCER: So, then, I got to make an account to
12 put all that in? I'm in jail.
13 THE COURT: Well, I didn't know whether you were in
14 jail or not. The fact that you're in jail doesn't affect your
15 legal rights.
16 MR. SPENCER: Yeah, I understand that but it's -- all
17 right. Okay.
18 THE COURT: But that's what you're entitled to under
19 the law.
20 MR. SPENCER: Yes.
21 THE COURT: Okay. We're now adjourned. Have a good
22 day.
23 MR. SPENCER: You too.
24 MR. SMOLINSKY: Thank you, Your Honor.
25 (Whereupon these proceedings were concluded at 3:04 PM)
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RULINGS

Final Fee Applications Approved

On the one motion remaining filed by Mr.
Kidwell that the Court may rule on, the
Court takes it under submission, allowing
the parties 30 days to reach their own
agreement before the Court will rule.

All Sanctions Motions Denied as Moot
Application of Mark Buttita for Allowance of
Administrative Expenses Incurred Denied
236th Omnibus Objection to Claim, Splinter
Union Employee Claims Approved

238th Omnibus Objections to Claim Granted
243rd Omnibus Objection Sustained as to
Claims Presented in this Hearing

244th Omnibus Objection Sustained as to
Claims Presented in this Hearing

245th Omnibus Objection Sustained as to
Claims Presented in this Hearing

246th Omnibus Objection Sustained as to

Claims Presented in this Hearing
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2 Agreement Granted

3 Motion to Strike Documents Denied 92 8
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